
Public Employees  
Benefits Board Meeting 

July 22, 2020 

Updated July 21, 2020



 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856  •  FAX 360-586-9511  •  TTY 711 

 

 
 

Public Employees Benefits Board 
July 22, 2020 
1:00 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.  
 
Attendance by Telephone Only 
 
Health Care Authority 
Sue Crystal A & B 
626 8th Avenue SE 
Olympia, Washington 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 

Meeting Agenda ..................................................................................................................... 1-1 
 
Member List ............................................................................................................................ 1-2 
 
2020 Meeting Schedule .......................................................................................................... 1-3 
2021 Meeting Schedule .......................................................................................................... 1-4 
 
Board By-Laws ....................................................................................................................... 2-1 
 
April 15, 2020 Draft Meeting Minutes ..................................................................................... 3-1 
 
Follow-up From July 15, 2020 Meeting ...........…………………………………………………... 4-1 
 
2021 Premium Resolutions - Non-Medicare  ....…………………………………………………. 5-1 
 
Medicare Retiree Options ....................................................................................................... 6-1 
 
Diabetes Management Program RFI Results ......................................................................... 7-1 
 
2020 Overview – Medical Flexible Spending Arrangement & Dependent Care Assistance 
Program .................................................................................................................................. 8-1 
 
PEBB My Account Enhancements ......................................................................................... 9-1 
 
 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
http://www.hca.wa.gov/


 

 

TAB 1 



 

 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 (TTY 711)  • FAX 360-586-9551 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
Public Employees Benefits Board   Aligning with Governor’s Proclamation 20-28, 
July 22, 2020  all Board Members and public attendees  
1:00 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.    will only be able to attend telephonically. 
    
To attend telephonically:     

Call-in Number: 1-866-374-5136   Join Skype Meeting    
Conference ID: 95587891#   (Visual Only)     

     

1:00* p.m. Welcome & Introductions  Sue Birch, Chair  

1:05 p.m. Meeting Overview  
Dave Iseminger, Director 
Employees & Retirees Benefits 
(ERB) Division  

Information/ 
Discussion 

1:10 p.m. 
Approval of April 15, 2020 
Meeting Minutes 

TAB 3 Sue Birch, Chair Action 

1:15 p.m. 
Follow Up From July 15, 
2020 Meeting 

TAB 4 
Dave Iseminger, Director 
ERB Division 

Information/ 
Discussion 

1:20 p.m. 
2021 Premium Resolutions - 
Non-Medicare  

TAB 5 
Tanya Deuel, ERB Finance Manager 
Financial Services Division 

Action 

1:45 p.m. Medicare Retiree Options TAB 6 

David Iseminger, Director 
ERB Division  
 
Marcia Peterson, Manager  
Benefit Strategy & Design Section 
ERB Division 

Information/ 
Discussion 

2:15 p.m. 
Diabetes Management 
Program RFI Results 

TAB 7 
Kat Cook, Benefit Strategy Analyst 
Benefit Strategy & Design Section 
ERB Division 

Information/ 
Discussion 

2:30 p.m. 

2020 Overview – Medical 
Flexible Spending 
Arrangement & Dependent 
Care Assistance Program 

TAB 8 
Marty Thies 
Portfolio Management & Monitoring 
Section, ERB Division 

Information/ 
Discussion 

2:50 p.m. 
PEBB My Account 
Enhancements 

TAB 9 
Jerry Britcher, Chief Information 
Officer, Enterprise Technology Services 

Information/ 
Discussion 

3:10 p.m. Public Comment    

3:30 p.m. Adjourn    

*All Times Approximate 
 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.governor.wa.gov%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fproclamations%2F20-28%2520-%2520COVID-19%2520Open%2520Govt%2520Laws%2520Waivers%2520%2528tmp%2529.pdf&data=02%7C01%7Ckaty.hatfield%40atg.wa.gov%7C53c1190dabf248cffe7d08d7d0697b69%7C2cc5baaf3b9742c9bcb8392cad34af3f%7C0%7C0%7C637207023816075946&sdata=FUzc3rN11qhcc5JQVudzn%2Bm00INmDp4zNNhOf7FXq4I%3D&reserved=0
https://lync.wa.gov/hca.wa.gov/meet/jesica.hagstrom/BG82S9DT
http://www.hca.wa.gov/


 

 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 (TTY 711)  • FAX 360-586-9551 

The Public Employees Benefits Board will meet telephonically on Wednesday, July 22, 2020.  Due to COVID-19 

and Governor’s Proclamation 20-28, Board Members and the public may attend by telephone only.   
 
The Board will consider all matters on the agenda plus any other emergency COVID-19 items that develop after 
publication of this agenda. 
 
This notice is pursuant to the requirements of the Open Public Meeting Act, Chapter 42.30 RCW. 
 
Direct e-mail to:  board@hca.wa.gov.   
 
Materials posted at:  http://www.pebb.hca.wa.gov/board/ by close of business on July 20, 2020, or as soon as 
possible in the event of additional COVID-19 matters materialize before the meeting convenes. 
 
 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.governor.wa.gov%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fproclamations%2F20-28%2520-%2520COVID-19%2520Open%2520Govt%2520Laws%2520Waivers%2520%2528tmp%2529.pdf&data=02%7C01%7Ckaty.hatfield%40atg.wa.gov%7C53c1190dabf248cffe7d08d7d0697b69%7C2cc5baaf3b9742c9bcb8392cad34af3f%7C0%7C0%7C637207023816075946&sdata=FUzc3rN11qhcc5JQVudzn%2Bm00INmDp4zNNhOf7FXq4I%3D&reserved=0
mailto:board@hca.wa.gov
http://www.pebb.hca.wa.gov/board/


 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856  •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
 

 
PEB Board Members 

 
Name  Representing 

 
Sue Birch, Director  Chair 
Health Care Authority 
626 8th Ave SE 
PO Box 42713 
Olympia WA  98504-2713 
V 360-725-2104 
sue.birch@hca.wa.gov 

 
 
Leanne Kunze, Executive Director State Employees 
Washington Federation of State Employees 
1212 Jefferson Street, Suite 300 
Olympia WA  98501 
V 800-562-6002 
leanne.kunze@hca.wa.gov 

 
 
Elyette Weinstein State Retirees 
5000 Orvas CT SE 
Olympia WA  98501-4765 
V 360-705-8388 
elyette.weinstein@hca.wa.gov  

 
 
Tom MacRobert K-12 Retirees 
4527 Waldrick RD SE 
Olympia WA  98501 
V 360-264-4450 
tom.macrobert@hca.wa.gov 

 
 
Tim Barclay Benefits Management/Cost Containment 

9624 NE 182nd CT, D 
Bothell WA  98011 

V 206-819-5588 
tim.barclay@hca.wa.gov 
 

 

 

 
 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
http://www.hca.wa.gov/
mailto:sue.birch@hca.wa.gov
mailto:leanne.kunze@hca.wa.gov
mailto:elyette.weinstein@hca.wa.gov
mailto:tom.macrobert@hca.wa.gov
mailto:tim.barclay@hca.wa.gov


 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856  •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
 

 

PEB Board Members 

 
Name  Representing 

 

 
Yvonne Tate Benefits Management/Cost Containment 
1407 169th PL NE 
Bellevue WA  98008 
V 425-417-4416 
yvonne.tate@hca.wa.gov 

 

 
John Comerford* Benefits Management/Cost Containment 
121 Vine ST Unit 1205 
Seattle WA  98121 
V 206-625-3200 
John.comerford@hca.wa.gov  
 

 
Harry Bossi Benefits Management/Cost Containment 
19619 23rd DR SE 
Bothell WA  98012 
V 360-689-9275 
harry.bossi@hca.wa.gov 

 
 
Legal Counsel 
Michael Tunick, Assistant Attorney General 
7141 Cleanwater Dr SW 
PO Box 40124 
Olympia WA  98504-0124 
V 360-586-6495 
MichaelT4@atg.wa.gov 
 
 
 
*non-voting member 
 
5/22/20 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
mailto:ytate@comcast.net
mailto:John.comerford@hca.wa.gov
mailto:hbossi@comcast.net
mailto:MichaelT4@atg.wa.gov


 
 

PEBB MEETING SCHEDULE 
 

2020 Public Employees Benefits Board Meeting Schedule 
 

 
The PEB Board meetings will be held at the Health Care Authority, Sue Crystal Center, 
Rooms A & B, 626 8th Avenue SE, Olympia, WA 98501.   
 
 
January 30, 2020   (Board Retreat)  9:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 
 
March 18, 2020  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m.    
  
April 15, 2020  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m. 
  
May 28, 2020  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m.  
 
June 17, 2020  -  Noon – 5:00 p..m. 
   
July 15, 2020  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m.  
 
July 22, 2020  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m. 
  
July 29, 2020  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m. 
 
   
 
If you are a person with a disability and need a special accommodation, please contact 
Connie Bergener at 360-725-0856 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7/2/19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

PEB BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 
 

2021 Public Employees Benefits (PEB) Board Meeting Schedule 
 

 
The PEB Board meetings will be held at the Health Care Authority, Sue Crystal Center, 
Rooms A & B, 626 8th Avenue SE, Olympia, WA 98501.   
 
 
January 27, 2021   (Board Retreat)  9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. 
 
March 17, 2021  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m.    
  
April 14, 2021  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m. 
  
May 12, 2021  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m.  
 
June 9, 2021  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m. 
 
June 30, 2021  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m. 
   
July 14, 2021  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m.  
 
July 21, 2021  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m. 
  
July 28, 2021  -  Noon – 5:00 p.m. 
 
   
 
If you are a person with a disability and need a special accommodation, please contact 
Connie Bergener at 360-725-0856 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6/12/20 
 
 
 



 

 

TAB 2 



 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
 

 
PEB BOARD BY-LAWS 

 
ARTICLE I 

The Board and its Members 
 

1. Board Function—The Public Employees Benefits Board (hereinafter “the PEBB” or 
“Board”) is created pursuant to RCW 41.05.055 within the Health Care Authority; the 
PEBB’s function is to design and approve insurance benefit plans and establish 
eligibility criteria for participation in insurance benefit plans for Higher Education and 
State employees, State retirees, and school retirees. 

 
2. Staff—Health Care Authority staff shall serve as staff to the Board. 

 
3. Appointment—The Members of the Board shall be appointed by the Governor in 

accordance with RCW 41.05.055.  Board Members shall serve two-year terms.  A 
Member whose term has expired but whose successor has not been appointed by the 
Governor may continue to serve until replaced. 

 
4. Non-Voting Member—There shall be one non-voting Members appointed by the 

Governor because of their experience in health benefit management and cost 
containment. 

 
5. Privileges of Non-Voting Member—The non-voting Member shall enjoy all the privileges 

of Board membership, except voting, including the right to sit with the Board, participate 
in discussions, and make and second motions.  

 
6. Board Compensation—Members of the Board shall be compensated in accordance with 

RCW 43.03.250 and shall be reimbursed for their travel expenses while on official 
business in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060. 

 
 

ARTICLE II 
Board Officers and Duties 

 

1. Chair of the Board—The Health Care Authority Administrator shall serve as Chair of the 
Board and shall preside at all meetings of the Board and shall have all powers and 
duties conferred by law and the Board’s By-laws.  If the Chair cannot attend a regular or 
special meeting, he or she shall designate a Chair Pro-Tem to preside during such 
meeting. 

 
2. Other Officers—(reserved) 

 

 
 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
http://www.hca.wa.gov/
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.03.250
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.03.050
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.03.060


 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
 

ARTICLE III 
Board Committees 

 

 
(RESERVED) 

 
 

ARTICLE IV 
Board Meetings 

 
1. Application of Open Public Meetings Act—Meetings of the Board shall be at the call of 

the Chair and shall be held at such time, place, and manner to efficiently carry out the 
Board’s duties.  All Board meetings, except executive sessions as permitted by law, 
shall be conducted in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 42.30 
RCW. 

 
2. Regular and Special Board Meetings—The Chair shall propose an annual schedule of 

regular Board meetings.  The schedule of regular Board meetings, and any changes to 
the schedule, shall be filed with the State Code Reviser’s Office in accordance with 
RCW 42.30.075.  The Chair may cancel a regular Board meeting at his or her 
discretion, including the lack of sufficient agenda items.  The Chair may call a special 
meeting of the Board at any time and proper notice must be given of a special meeting 
as provided by the Open Public Meetings Act, RCW 42.30. 

 
3. No Conditions for Attendance—A member of the public is not required to register his or 

her name or provide other information as a condition of attendance at a Board meeting.  
 

4. Public Access—Board meetings shall be held in a location that provides reasonable 
access to the public including the use of accessible facilities. 

 
5. Meeting Minutes and Agendas—The agenda for an upcoming meeting shall be made 

available to the Board and the interested members of the public at least 24 hours prior 
to the meeting date or as otherwise required by the Open Public Meetings Act.   
 
Agendas may be sent by electronic mail and shall also be posted on the HCA website.  
An audio recording (or other generally-accepted electronic recording) shall be made of 
the meeting.  HCA staff will provide minutes summarizing each meeting frm the audio 
recording.  Summary minutes shall be provided to the Board for review and adoption at 
a subsequent Board meeting. 

 
6. Attendance—Board Members shall inform the Chair with as much notice as possible if 

unable to attend a scheduled Board meeting.  Board staff preparing the minutes shall 
record the attendance of Board Members at the meeting for the minutes. 

 
 
 

 
 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/


 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
ARTICLE V 

Meeting Procedures 
 

1. Quorum— Five voting members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business.  No final action may be taken in the absence of a quorum.  The 
Chair may declare a meeting adjourned in the absence of a quorum necessary to 
transact business. 

 
2. Order of Business—The order of business shall be determined by the agenda. 

 
3. Teleconference Permitted— A Board Member may attend a meeting in person or, by 

special arrangement and advance notice to the Chair, by telephone conference call, or 
video conference when in-person attendance is impracticable.    

 
4. Public Testimony—The Board actively seeks input from the public at large, from 

enrollees served by the PEBB Program, and from other interested parties.  Time is 
reserved for public testimony at each regular meeting, generally at the end of the 
agenda.  At the direction of the Chair, public testimony at Board meetings may also 
occur in conjunction with a public hearing or during the Board’s consideration of a 
specific agenda item.  The Chair has authority to limit the time for public testimony, 
including the time allotted to each speaker, depending on the time available and the 
number of persons wishing to speak. 

 
5. Motions and Resolutions—All actions of the Board shall be expressed by motion or 

resolution.  No motion or resolution shall have effect unless passed by the affirmative 
votes of a majority of the Board Members present and eligible to vote, or in the case of 
a proposed amendment to the By-laws, a 2/3 majority of the Board .   

 
6. Representing the Board’s Position on an Issue—No Board Member may endorse or 

oppose an issue purporting to represent the Board or the opinion of the Board on an 
issue unless the majority of the Board approve of such position. 

 
7. Manner of Voting—On motions, resolutions, or other matters a voice vote may be used.  

At the discretion of the Chair, or upon request of a Board Member, a roll call vote may 
be conducted.  Proxy votes are not permitted, but the prohibition of proxy votes does 
not prevent a Chair Pro-Tem designated by the Health Care Authority Director from 
voting. 

 
8. Parliamentary Procedure—All rules of order not provided for in these By-laws shall be 

determined in accordance with the most current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order.  
Board staff shall provide a copy of Robert’s Rules at all Board meetings. 

 
9. Civility—While engaged in Board duties, Board Members’ conduct shall demonstrate 

civility, respect, and courtesy toward each other, HCA staff, and the public and shall be 
guided by fundamental tenets of integrity and fairness.  

 
10. State Ethics Law and Recusal—Board Members are subject to the requirements of the 

Ethics in Public Service Act, Chapter 42.52 RCW.  A Board Member shall recuse 
himself or herself from casting a vote as necessary to comply with the Ethics in Public 
Service Act. 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/


 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
ARTICLE VI 

Amendments to the By-Laws and Rules of Construction 
 

1. Two-thirds majority required to amend—The PEBB By-laws may be amended upon a 
two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Board. 

 
2. Liberal construction—All rules and procedures in these By-laws shall be liberally 

construed so that the public’s health, safety and welfare shall be secured in accordance 
with the intents and purposes of applicable State laws and regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
Update by Board Approval July 15, 2020 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/


 

 

TAB 3 



1 

 

 

 

 
Public Employees Benefits Board Special Meeting 

Meeting Minutes 
 

Draft 

April 15, 2020 
Health Care Authority 
Meeting Held Telephonically 
Olympia, Washington 
12:00 p.m. – 3:30 p.m. 
 
 
Members Present: 
Sue Birch, Chair 
Tim Barclay 
Harry Bossi  
John Comerford 
Leanne Kunze 
Tom MacRobert 
Yvonne Tate 
Elyette Weinstein 
 
PEB Board Counsel:  
Michael Tunick, Assistant Attorney General 
 
 
Call to Order 
Sue Birch, Chair, called the meeting to order at 12:02 p.m.  Due to COVID-19 and the 
Governor's Proclamation 20-28, today we’re meeting telephonically only.  Sufficient 
members present to allow a quorum.  Board self-introductions followed.   
 
The Board met in Executive Session at 12:10 p.m., pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(l), to 
consider proprietary or confidential nonpublished information related to the 
development, acquisition, or implementation of state purchased health care services as 
provided in RCW 41.05.026.   
 
The public portion of the meeting resumed at 1:00 p.m. 
 
Meeting Overview and Follow Up 
David Iseminger, Director, Employees and Retirees Benefits Division, provided an 
overview of today’s meeting and a follow up from the April 2, 2020 meeting.   
 
At the April 2 meeting, the Board passed an eligibility requirement to set up emergency 
eligibility for health care workers, first responders, individuals who work in medical 
facilities.  As of yesterday, the Department of Health was the first agency to use that 
eligibility criteria.  It’s fascinating to me that in less than 15 days, an eligibility framework 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/


2 

 

was created, enacted, and utilized for hiring some state employees.  The action this 
Board took was important and a testament to the times we are in.   
 
Approval of April 24, 2019 Meeting Minutes  
Yvonne Tate moved and Harry Bossi seconded a motion to approve the April 24, 2019 
PEB Board Meeting minutes.  Minutes approved as written by unanimous vote. 
 
Approval of May 21, 2019 Meeting Minutes  
Tom MacRobert moved and Harry Bossi seconded a motion to approve the May 21, 
2019 PEB Board Meeting minutes.  Minutes approved as written by unanimous vote. 
 
Approval of June 5, 2019 Meeting Minutes  
Harry Bossi moved and Yvonne Tate seconded a motion to approve the June 5, 2019 
PEB Board Meeting minutes.  Minutes approved as written by unanimous vote. 
 
Approval of June 19, 2019 Meeting Minutes  
Yvonne Tate moved and Tom MacRobert seconded a motion to approve the June 19, 
2019 PEB Board Meeting minutes.  Minutes approved as written by unanimous vote. 
 
Approval of July 10, 2019 Meeting Minutes  
Tom MacRobert moved and Harry Bossi seconded a motion to approve the July 10, 
2019 PEB Board Meeting minutes.  Minutes approved as written by unanimous vote. 
 
Approval of January 30, 2020 Meeting Minutes  
Tom MacRobert moved and Yvonne Tate seconded a motion to approve the January 
30, 2020 PEB Board Meeting minutes.  Minutes approved as written by unanimous 
vote. 
 
Agenda Item:  Legislative Update:  PEBB 2020 Supplemental Budget 
Tanya Deuel, ERB Finance Manager, Financial Services Division.  At our last meeting 
we discussed the Governor’s budget.  Today’s presentation is a result of the final 
conference budget and recaps how the funding rate landed.   
 
Slide 2 – Final Funding Rate.  For the first time in many years, there was no action on 
the funding rates in the supplemental budget.  For Fiscal Year 2020, ending June 30, 
2020, the funding rate is $939.  For Fiscal Year 2021, the funding rate is $976.  These 
are paid per employee per month by each agency and higher education institution for 
each eligible employee, regardless of how they enroll in benefits.  HCA has no concerns 
with these funding rates as they are adequate to maintain the current level of benefits, 
plus a few additions I'll describe shortly.     
 
Slide 3 – Medicare Explicit Subsidy.  The Medicare explicit subsidy remained 
unchanged at $183 per month.  This is per Medicare eligible retiree and is $183 or 50% 
of the premium, whichever is less.   
 
Slide 4 – Final Conference Budget Funding.  The three items on this slide are the final 
amounts received from our original decision package requests.  First, HCA received 
$233,000 for two audit FTEs in the budget.  We requested four FTEs, two for PEBB and 
two for SEBB, to support audit capabilities.  We received two total FTEs. 
 



3 

 

Dave Iseminger:  Health Care Authority is charged as the sentinels on eligibility and 
making sure our employers, which between the two programs is almost 800 separate 
employers, are administering the eligibility rules, set by you and by the Legislature, as 
consistently as possible across the system.  The PEBB Program has been in existence 
for several decades, over the years, one of the primary ways we ensured consistent 
rules application is in the appeals process.  We identify areas that consistently come up 
for training and opportunities to course correct on eligibility determination.  That's far 
down the pipeline, and has gotten to the point where an individual was denied benefits 
and they're appealing that denial.   
 
HCA has wanted to create an audit eligibility check system on the front end.  This 
decision package was funded and supported by both the Governor's Office and the 
Legislature.  There will be front-end periodic audits and we will cycle through the various 
employers in both programs and do audit checks of eligibility determination before we 
get to a point of denials.  We will continue to use the appeals process as another 
opportunity for course correcting on misunderstandings about the eligibility framework 
for our employers.  This package allows us to do front-end audit of eligibility.  They will 
be based in Olympia, with some site visits from time to time.   
 
Tanya Deuel:  The strike out of text in the next item is unique.  HCA was funded in the 
final conference budget $119,000 for one FTE to support our Medicare plan offerings.  
Along with this funding was proviso language for HCA to participate in a work group and 
create a report to the Legislature on a study regarding our Medicare offerings.  This was 
vetoed by the Governor, so we will not be receiving that one FTE.   
 
The third item is $75,000 for a Diabetes Management Request for Information (RFI).  
This item was a request for $150,000 to split equally between the PEBB and the SEBB 
Programs.  We received the full funding between the two programs.  This would be one-
time administrative funding for HCA to complete an RFI.   
 
HCA currently offers a Diabetes Prevention Program to PEBB Program members 
through Omada, a virtual program.  However, we do not have a formal Diabetes 
Management Program.  The RFI will allow HCA to see what is available in the market 
place for such a program.     
 
Slide 5 – Final Conference Budget Funding (cont.).  The first circle on this slide is $1.7 
million – ESSB 6189 funding.  This is funding for technology changes for HCA to 
implement this legislation, which prohibits dual enrollment between the PEBB and 
SEBB Programs. This is one-time funding to modify our systems.   
 
The last circle does not have a dollar amount because it's buried within our claims cost 
for benefits.  This is to align with legislation passed in 2018.  E2SSB 5179 states that 
hearing coverage must include a new instrument every five years.  The UMP benefit 
currently covers $800 every three years.  This will align HCA with this legislation for plan 
year 2021.     
 
Dave Iseminger:  The reason this doesn't have a dollar figure, if you go back to Slide 2, 
the funding rates are $939 and $976, and legislative budget processes said there is 
enough to cover this benefit change in those numbers.  It’s buried in the funding rate.   
 



4 

 

Agenda Item:  Legislative Update: Bills 
Cade Walker, Executive Special Assistant, ERB Division.  Slide 2 – Number of 2020 
Bills Analyzed by the Employees and Retirees Benefits (ERB) Division.  There were 384 
bill analyses completed.  The ERB Division was tracking 158 pieces of legislation as 
high priority, with another 226 as a lower priority.  A high priority bill has a fiscal impact 
of $50,000 or greater, or would impact our rules.  Low impact, low supports have neither 
of those as part of the legislation.   
 
Slide 3 – Legislative Update – ERB High Lead Bills.  These bills on Slide 3 are 
individual bill numbers.  A bill may have several different versions introduced throughout 
the session.  There are engrossed bills and substitute bills, as well as other prefixes.  
This slide tracks the particular number of that legislation, four of which were high priority 
and signed by the Governor.     
 
Slide 4 – PEBB & SEBB Program Impact Bills.  There wasn’t a lot passed this session 
that directly impacted the PEBB or SEBB Programs.  ESSB 6189 impacted the SEBB 
Program, but I’m sharing with this Board as it may have some impacts in the future.   
 
Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill 6189 - Eligibility for School Employees Benefits Board 
Coverage, was signed by the Governor.  A report required by this bill is for the Joint 
Legislative Audit and Review Committee to conduct a study on the number and types of 
part-time employees in the SEBB Program and their eligibility for SEBB benefits.  It's 
due to the Legislature in September 2021.  HCA and the Office of the Superintendent of 
Public Instruction will assist with this report.    
 
A second required report is for the Health Care Authority to prepare a report on waivers 
and analyzing the impacts of changes to the requirement that school employers must 
remit premiums for employees who have waived medical coverage and the fiscal 
impact.  Tanya and her team will be leading that report effort and it’s due to the 
Legislature September 2021.   
 
The legislation also requires enhanced reporting by school districts on their part-time 
employees.  The legislation also prohibits, beginning January 1, 2022, dual coverage 
under the SEB Board and benefits provided under the PEB Board from the same type of 
coverage.  This is an impact to the PEBB Program.  Dual coverage between the 
programs will no longer be allowed.  
 
Both the SEB and PEB Boards passed resolutions, either recently or historically, that 
prohibit dual enrollment within the programs.  This legislation also prohibits dual 
enrollment between the programs.  If a member is eligible for PEBB Benefits, as well as 
eligible for SEBB Benefits, whether it’s dependent on one or the other, they're limited to 
enrolling in one type of benefit between the two programs where that member is allowed 
to decide.  There will be more information on this legislation as we continue to develop 
rules regarding the dual coverage.  
 
There was a provision added at the last hour before the session ended addressing 
COVID and the eligibility of school employees in preserving eligibility and benefits for 
school employees.   
 



5 

 

Dave Iseminger:  I think it's impossible for HCA to administratively accomplish 
implementation of dual enrollment prohibition between PEBB and SEBB without 
additional action by at least one, if not both, the PEB and SEB Boards.  There will be 
policy decisions and proposals we will bring to this Board, and your sister Board, either 
later this season or next season.  HCA will continue to evaluate and make 
recommendations to the Board.  For example, in neither program is there currently the 
ability to waive dental.  When the legislation says limited enrollment to a single dental 
plan, if you have eligibility in both plans, there is physically and legally no way right now 
under the existing policies for that to occur.  Action will be required by at least one 
Board in order make that happen within the eligibility framework for the two programs.   
 
We will continue to evaluate this internally determining what areas need to come before 
the Board.  I did want to make sure the Board knows there will be an active Board 
discussion either later this season, or the beginning of next season, or most likely, in 
both instances to bring forth policy proposals to be able to move forward and implement 
a cross PEBB/SEBB dual enrollment prohibition by plan year 2022. 
 
Elyette Weinstein:  Do you foresee there are WACs that will need drafting? 
 
Dave Iseminger:  Yes.  Typically, we'll bring a broad policy statement necessary for the 
Board to take action on.  We then move into formal rule making processes and write 
those policy decisions into WACs/rules in the official code.  We may have to modify 
existing rules, but that process begins with policy resolutions we bring to you.  Once we 
have the broad policy direction, HCA takes care of the rule making activities. 
 
Cade Walker:  Slide 5 – SEBB Program Impact Bills - Eligibility.  None of the bills that 
impacted SEBB benefits eligibility passed.  6189 became the primary piece of 
legislation regarding SEBB benefits eligibility.  While that piece of legislation passed, it 
did not make direct changes to program eligibility.  Instead, it created studies for the 
Legislature to get more information.    
 
Slide 6 – SEBB Program Impact Bills.  HB 2458 directly impacts the SEBB Program 
regarding optional benefits offered by school districts, prohibiting them from offering 
optional benefits to employees that compete with the basic or the optional benefits that 
are offered by the SEB Board, as well as under the authority of the Health Care 
Authority.  The legislation delineates which optional benefits school districts may offer, if 
not offered by the SEB Board, and authorizes the SEB Board to study, and subject to 
available funding, offer the same delineated benefits as employee-paid voluntary 
benefits to school employees.   
 
The legislation also requires school districts and applicable carriers to work with the 
Health Care Authority to modify, remove, or discontinue any benefits offered by a school 
district deemed to be in conflict or competition with HCA or SEBB benefits offered.   
 
School districts are able to consider travel insurance, incident triggered/illness triggered 
specific insurances like cancer insurance or hospital stay insurance, things not in 
competition with the benefits currently offered by the SEBB Program.  This does not 
require the SEBB Program to offer additional optional benefits.  It merely gives the 
authority to study, and subject to funding, offer additional optional benefits listed in the 
legislation. 



6 

 

Dave Iseminger:  If there is an evaluation of one of those enumerated benefits for the 
SEBB Program you would like HCA to pursue, this agency will do the evaluations for 
both programs and cross the legal authority bridge for this Board if we get there.   
 
Cade Walker:  I want to go back briefly and clarify a question raised regarding 6189.  
I've since received an email question on ESSB 6189.  The legislation does not say you 
can only enroll in SEBB or in PEBB benefits.  It says you can only enroll in one type of 
benefit through those programs.  You can only enroll in one dental, one medical, and 
one vision for SEBB.  There will probably be additional refinement, but I do want to 
make clear the legislation does not specifically say dual enrollment prohibition is limiting 
someone to enrollment in the entire suite of benefits within either the PEBB or SEBB 
Program.   
 
Slide 7 – Topical Areas of Introduced Legislation.  There were a couple pieces of 
legislation passed and signed by the Governor regarding provider and health carrier 
credentialing.  2SSB 5601 was partially vetoed by the Governor.  He vetoed the 
requirement of a work group that was unfunded by the Legislature and signed the rest.     
 
E2SHB 2662, related to diabetes medication, was signed by the Governor but the 
pharmacy tourism and pharmacy importation bills were not.  Legislation passed on 
substance use disorder, as well as expanded durable medical equipment coverage.   
 
Agenda Item:  Expanding PEBB Medicare Options Update 
Ellen Wolfhagen, Senior Account Manager, ERB Division.  Slide 2 – Today’s Agenda is 
to provide an update on recent developments and a timeline.   
 
HCA is considering expanding the portfolio.  The Medicare Advantage plans that 
currently exist in the retiree portfolio are not going away.   
 
Medicare Advantage plans cover part A, the hospital plan, and Part B, the medical plans 
for Medicare.  The Medicare Advantage Part D plans include Part D prescription drug 
coverage, which is the outpatient standard drug coverage.  We're looking at is an 
expanded set of benefits as well.   
 
HCA is looking at National Preferred Provider Organization plans, which means any 
provider who accepts Medicare as payment is included in the network and it’s national 
coverage.     
 
Slide 3 – Recent Developments.  In January, there were two apparently successful 
bidders, Regence and UnitedHealthcare.  HCA entered into negotiations with both and 
ran into difficulties with Regence in achieving a timely resolution.  We have suspended 
negotiations with Regence, which could be restarted if there's a significant change, but 
that would be impossible for plan year 2021.      
 
Negotiations continue with UnitedHealthcare with significant progress made.  Those 
negotiations are ongoing.   
 
Slide 4 – Updated Timeline.  Currently, we're in the March to June period, completing 
contract negotiations.  We’ll finalize benefit design and proposed rates.  During summer, 



7 

 

we’ll bring proposed rates and final benefits design to the Board for a vote.  During 2021 
open enrollment, subscribers can enroll in these plans.   
 
Dave Iseminger:  We do have ongoing conversations in Executive Session about the 
status of these negotiations.  I want to reassure the public the appropriate use of 
Executive Sessions, negotiations, and information shared with the Board as allowed 
under state law.  When we started this journey, we anticipated presenting two plans, 
one from each of the apparently successful bidders for consideration by the Board.  
With suspending negotiations with one of our apparently successful bidders, we're still 
anticipating presenting two plans to the Board, but both from the same carrier.   
 
Agenda Item:  Eligibility & Enrollment Policy Development 
Rob Parkman, Policy and Rules Coordinator, ERB Division.  Slide 2 – Introduction of 
Proposed Resolutions.  We are introducing two resolutions today.  The first is Proposed 
Resolution PEBB 2020-04 - Default Enrollment for An Eligible Employee Who Fails to 
Make a Timely Election, and Proposed Resolution PEBB 2020-05 - Medicare 
Advantage Prescription Drug (MA-PD) Plan Enrollment.   
 
Slide 3 - Proposed Resolution PEBB 2020-04 - Default Enrollment for An Eligible 
Employee Who Fails to Make a Timely Election.  The default election for an eligible 
employee who fails to timely elect coverage will be as follows:   
- Enrollment in employee-only medical coverage; 
- Enrollment in employee-only dental coverage; 
- Enrollment in basic life insurance; 
- Enrollment in basic AD&D; and  
- Enrollment in basic Long-Term Disability.   
 
The proposed resolution would default employees only into coverages included with an 
employer contribution.  Employees would not default into supplemental coverages.  
Dependents would not be enrolled in coverage.    
 
There have been past resolutions approved by the Board related to this subject, but 
they did not completely incorporate all parts of current practice in the policy we’re 
bringing to the Board today.  Those previously passed resolutions are included in the 
Appendix for your review.  Currently, about 32 employees per month in the PEBB 
Program are affected by this resolution.  
 
Dave Iseminger:  I want to assure you this resolution we’re teeing up for you really 
reflects what has historically happened in the program.  Working with the SEB Board, 
we would pick up historical resolutions from the PEBB Program and rework them for the 
SEBB Program context.  We noticed this Board didn’t have a comprehensive single 
resolution that describes defaulting into basic life insurance, basic AD&D, basic LTD.  
The resolutions that existed are the ones in your Appendix and slowly built up pieces of 
it.  We wanted to bring you a single holistic resolution.  We didn't include the tobacco 
surcharge because it’s a slightly different framework.  You have already passed a 
resolution related to the tobacco surcharge default.  This resolution is really 
memorializing and tying up loose ends from a procedural standpoint.  This is not 
substantively changing anything.   
 



8 

 

The second piece I want to mention is Rob gave you a number of potential people that 
are impacted.  We know 32 is a conservative number because in our system, we have 
90 days for an employer to key into Pay1.  On day 91, the default logic in Pay1 is 
applied.  Between day 31 when the employee’s election is due and day 90 that an 
agency can key, they often ultimately key the default plans.  Those do not show up in 
our data.  The numbers Rob reports are what we see on day 91, because agencies 
input data between day 31 and day 90 to avoid a retro collection of three months of 
premiums. 
 
Rob Parkman:  Slide 4 - Proposed Resolution PEBB 2020-05 - Medicare Advantage 
Prescription Drug (MA-PD)   Plan Enrollment.  If a subscriber elects to enroll in a PEBB 
Program MA-PD plan, any non-Medicare enrollees on the account will be enrolled in the 
Uniform Medical Plan (UMP) Classic. 
 
Considerations:  the proposed resolution would require a Medicare subscriber who 
elects to enroll in an MA-PD plan to enroll any of their non-Medicare enrollees on the 
account in UMP Classic. This is a similar process we have for subscribers to select the 
Medicare supplement plans at this time, and their non-Medicare                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
enrollees in UMP Classic.   
 
Example 1:  Our retiree Sally is 67.  She is Medicare eligible at this time, but her 
husband, Fred, who is 60, is not.  If Sally selects the MA-PD plan, her husband would 
enroll in UMP Classic.   
 
Example 2:  Our retiree Sally is 60.  She is not Medicare eligible. Her husband, Fred, is 
67 and Medicare eligible.  Since Sally is the subscriber, she selected the MA-PD plan 
for her husband and she enrolled in UMP Classic.   
 
We will incorporate any feedback on the proposed resolutions and start the 
stakeholdering process.  We will bring the resolutions to the Board for action at the May 
28 meeting.     
 
I have one item to correct from our last meeting.  One of my examples was incorrect 
and I want to correct it for the record.  Slide 14 in the Appendix – Example #2 to 
Proposed Resolution PEBB 2020-02 – COVID-19 Enrollment Timelines.     
 
Resolution PEBB 2020-02 – COVID-19 Enrollment Timelines was passed at the April 2, 
2020 Special Board Meeting.  There are no changes to this resolution.  There are also 
no changes to Example 1.   
 
On Slide 14, the last day to enroll in continuation coverage was on May 30.  The state of 
emergency ended on May 15, and we incorrectly stated their deadline would not 
change.  That is not correct.  If we can go to slide 15, we'll see a correction for example 
two.   
 
Slide 15 – COVID-19 Enrollment Timelines - Example 2 (Updated).  The words “would 
not change and the deadline would remain as May 31, 2020” are stricken.  The correct 
verbiage is added, to read: “will be extended to June 14, 2020 because the subscriber’s 
continuation coverage enrollment period ended following the end of the emergency 
period, and before the end of the 30-day extension period.” 



9 

 

Dave Iseminger:  The correction doesn't change the substance of anything discussed 
two weeks ago, but many employers rely on our examples.  It needed to corrected for 
the record.   
 
Sue Birch:  Being a member of the Uniform Command Group, I want to make sure 
people understand this is a hypothetical example of the emergency termination date.  
No decision has been made about the COVID emergency status.  We'll keep you 
posted as we know, but I do want to clarify these are just illustrative examples.  No 
inferences made there.  And stay healthy and inside, stay home, as much as possible.  
Those are our big messages. 
 
Rob Parkman:  Slide 16 – COVID-19 Enrollment Timelines – Example 2.  This wire 
timing diagram supports the update to Example 2.    
 
Agenda Item:  UMP Additional Plan Proposal 
Lauren Johnston, SEBB Procurement Manager, Shawna Lang, UMP Senior Account 
Manager, and Tanya Deuel, ERB Finance Manager. 
 
Lauren Johnston:  Slide 2 – Objectives.  Today we're going to present an additional 
plan option to offer under the Uniform Medical Plan portfolio with an approximate 
actuarial value at 82%.  Going forward, we will refer to this plan as the UMP 82 AV plan.  
Keep in mind the AV level is approximate.   
 
Dave Iseminger:  Today it’s called the UMP 82 AV plan, but we are going through a 
marketing exercise to officially name the plan.  We will bring you a fully named plan at 
the May 28 meeting.   
 
Lauren Johnston:  Slide 3 – PEBB Portfolio Employee Only Deductible Levels.  This 
slide looks at the deductible level for a PEBB Program subscriber enrolled on an 
employee-only plan.  The range of deductible levels is listed across the top, which range 
from $125 to $300.  The next plan jumps up to $1,400 for the CDHP plans.  The text in 
red represents the UMP 82 AV plan, which would add an additional deductible level, 
with a mid-range at the $750 deductible level.  The subscriber’s deductible can be 
reduced by $125, or have $125 added to the subscriber’s health savings account for 
those enrolled in the CDHP plan when they earn the SmartHealth incentive.   
 
Slide 4 – Proposed UMP ~82 AV Plan.   When we started down the path of considering 
whether or not to introduce a new PEBB Program plan, we look at it from different 
perspectives.  One perspective was asking what things the subscriber or a member 
would consider when looking at this proposed plan option.  We felt they might consider 
the UMP 82 AV plan provides them another plan option with that mid-level deductible 
range.  Although it may have a 20% coinsurance, which is 5% higher than other UMP 
plans, it offers a lower monthly premium.  In addition to a higher deductible with the 
lower premium means subscribers should be prepared to meet this deductible prior to 
the plan paying for services.   
 
We also felt they would consider the UMP 82 AV plan has the same provider network as 
UMP Classic.  As of March 6, of 2020, the UMP 82 AV plan had the third highest SEBB 
Program enrollment during the first year of the program with 29,180 enrollees, of which 
only 2% defaulted into the plan.     



10 

 

Slide 5 – Proposed UMP ~82 AV Plan (cont.).  Things to consider when offering the 
UMP 82 AV plan is this additional plan could help add to the breadth of plan options for 
all income demographics within the PEBB Program population, but especially for 
employees who have less pay.   
 
Slide 6 – PEBB Program Member Income, shows data on PEBB Program subscriber 
incomes, which includes state and higher education employees.  This data is based on 
income data from 2018.  Approximately 29% of PEBB Program employees make 
$50,000 or less a year.  It then bumps up to a total of 76% of employees who make up 
to $80,000 per year. 
 
Dave Iseminger:  The income distribution of the population was ultimately one of the 
driving forces that had the SEB Board authorize this additional plan.  This 82 AV plan 
we're talking about with the PEB Board is an additional Uniform Medical Plan that the 
SEB Board already authorized for school employees.  One of the major drivers in the 
SEB Board’s consideration was the significant portion of the school employee 
population that is part-time who want additional price points and deductible options.  As 
we looked at the distribution of pay per state employees and higher education, we saw 
a similar potential need for PEBB Board subscribers.   
 
Sue Birch:  I think given our current economic catastrophes that are out of hand, and 
the challenges of COVID, it's timely you brought this forward because if our state is in 
dire budgetary constraints, they'll be looking at all sorts of avenues to keep people 
covered, to create savings, but still make sure people are covered.  So very timely, as 
usual.  You all are mind readers. 
 
Dave Iseminger:  A question brought up to me many different times is the concern that 
people will just race to this plan.  We learned in the SEBB Program many people were 
looking at higher AV plans.  They weren't racing to the bottom on premium.  While 
premium is an important component, the SEBB Program open enrollment showed our 
consumers are more savvy than solely looking at monthly premium.   
 
Lauren Johnston:  On Slide 7, you'll see other Program and Board considerations if 
this plan were to be offered under SEBB.  One consideration is without an active open 
enrollment, it may take time for enrollment to grow in this new plan.  Another 
consideration is that adding a UMP 82 AV plan could offer a new default plan option.   
 
Shawna Lang:  Slide 8 – UMP Benefit Design Comparison.  The first plan comparison 
is Classic (~88 AV), CDHP (~88 AV), UMP Plus (~89 AV), and the new UMP ~82 AV 
Plan.   
 
Deductibles for single and family are:  Classic ($250 and $750), CDHP ($1,400/$2,800), 
UMP Plus ($125 and $375), and UMP ~82 AV Plan ($750 and $2,250).   
 
Out-of-pocket maximum for families:  Classic ($2,000/$4,000), CDHP ($4,200/$8,400), 
UMP Plus ($2,000/$4,000), and UMP ~82 AV Plan ($3,500/$7,000).   
 
Coinsurance for Classic, CDHP, UMP Plus are 15%.  The UMP ~82 AV Plan is 20%.   
 



11 

 

Slide 9 – UMP Benefit Design Comparison.  This slide is a cost comparison of different 
types of services.  In Classic, CDHP, and UMP Plus, ambulances are 20% across the 
board because they are not considered a network service.  Any kind of ambulance is 
covered at 20% and that continues in the UMP ~82 AV Plan.  As you look at the table, 
most services are still covered at 15% in Classic, CDHP, and UMP Plus with a 
coinsurance of 20% for the new UMP ~82 AV Plan.   
 
Hearing aid benefits and inpatient services remain the same as the rest of the plans.  
The only caveat would be CDHP, which has a coinsurance instead of a copayment for 
inpatient services. 
 
Dave Iseminger:  I want to highlight the hearing hardware benefit described is $800 
every three months.  We are working on the transition Tanya alluded to earlier in the 
budget, moving to a full set of hardware every five years.  This table reflects the current 
coverage.   
 
Shawna Lang:  Slide 10 – UMP Benefit Design Comparison (cont.).  For office visits, 
the coinsurance for Classic, CDHP, and UMP Plus is 15%.  The new plan is 20%.   
The different types of spinal manipulations, acupuncture, and massage therapy are the 
same at 16 visits for Classic, CDHP, UMP Plus, and UMP ~82 AV.  Physical therapy, 
occupational therapy, speech therapy, and neurodevelopmental therapy for Classic, 
CDHP, and UMP Plus are 15%, and UMP ~82 AV is at 15%.    
 
Slide 11 - UMP Benefit Design Comparison (cont.) compares the pharmacy benefits.  
There is little difference between UMP Classic and the new UMP ~82 AV Plan.  The 
main difference is the RX deductible.   
 
Tanya Deuel:  Slide 12 – UMP ~82 AV Rate Considerations.  We haven’t started 
procurement for plan year 2021, including rate development.  However, we have started 
evaluating things we would need to take into consideration for any potential rates and 
premium differentials for offering this plan in PEBB.  The first thing we are considering is 
the membership would primarily switch from UMP Classic at the level of switching that 
was similar to the last couple of times when new plan offerings happened in the UMP 
portfolio.  Short term, we're not expecting a significant amount of enrollment to switch 
into this plan without an active open enrollment.  We've been looking at those different 
levels of switching, which brings me to my next point.   
 
The level of switching is significant to the state index rate.  The state index rate is the 
employer’s contribution towards employees’ medical benefits.  This is set in the state 
Collective Bargaining Agreement and is currently set at an 85% projected weighted 
average of health care costs for the upcoming plan year.   
 
Since the state contribution for medical is based on a weighted average, as we 
introduce a new plan, that new plan would become part of the average.  Looking at the 
last two plans offered into the UMP portfolio, we saw a 5%-6% switching assumption 
from the other plans into the new plan offering.  With that level of switching in the first 
year, we would expect to see the state index rate lower by approximately $2, based on 
current modeling.     
 



12 

 

If the Board adopts this plan, full rate development would begin and we would offer you 
premium levels for the various UMP plans, as well as the impact on the state index 
rates in those premiums for our members.  This only impacts our non-Medicare plans as 
it would not be offered in the Medicare portfolio. 
 
Dave Iseminger:  To set the historical stage, in the beginning there was UMP.  It began 
in the early 90s and was the only self-insured plan in the portfolio for roughly 20 years.  
In 2011, this Board authorized, at the direction of the Legislature and partly because of 
statutory requirements by the Legislature, the High Deductible Health Plan, called UMP 
CDHP, for plan year 2012.  The first UMP product became “UMP Classic” to 
differentiate between the two UMP plans.  UMP Plus was introduced beginning in plan 
year 2016.  
 
That was the most recent introduction into the Uniform Medical Plan portfolio.  We’ve 
had 20 years when UMP Classic was the only plan.  In 2012 we added CDHP and in 
2016, UMP Plus.  Those recent experiences over the last decade guide our financial 
assumptions on switching.   
 
Tanya Deuel:  Between CDHP and UMP Plus in the PEBB portfolio, we saw 5% and 
6% switching and we believe that would be an appropriate level of switching to assume.   
 
Shawna Lang:  Slide 13 – Proposed Resolution PEBB 2020-06 – Self-insured Plan 
Offering.  Beginning January 1, 2021, the PEBB Program will offer a self-insured plan 
with the same covered services and exclusions, same provider networks, and same 
clinical policies as the Uniform Medical Plan Classic.  The cost shares (deductible, out- 
of-pocket maximums, coinsurance for services, etc.) will be the same as the UMP 
Classic, except for the following:   
 
Slide 14 - Proposed Resolution PEBB 2020-06 – Self-insured Plan Offering (cont.).  
Next slide, please.   

 Annual Deductible (medical):  $750/$2,250 (single/family) 

 Annual Deductible (drug):  $250/$750 (single/family) 

 Out-of-Pocket Maximum (medical):  $3,500/$7,000 (single/family) 

 Coinsurances:  20%/80% (member/plan) 
 

Sue Birch:  Do we have projections on the state savings at this point and/or will we get 
that information?  
 
Tanya Deuel:  We can definitely pull that information.  We are starting the rate 
development process the first week of May.  That would be something we can look at 
and bring back to the Board. 
 
Dave Iseminger:  It’s possible that based on where we are in the rate setting process 
we may need to do the initial revealing of discussions in Executive Session because it 
impacts the remaining of the rate setting process for the fully insured plans before we're 
able to share it publicly.   
 
Sue Birch:  Given all the instability of COVID, COVID testing, COVID surveillance and 
monitoring, and maybe the unknown of a new normal, how are we factoring that into the 



13 

 

rate development processes?  How might that might impact folks making a choice about 
coverage?  Can you speak to that?  
 
Tanya Deuel:  I can speak to how we are managing that.  Dave, Megan, I have been in 
conversations with the carriers regarding COVID impacts and how that will impact their 
bid rates.  An RFR went out and we are releasing the bid rate portion of that this week 
for carriers who have not yet received our instructions.  In part of those instructions, we 
will be addressing COVID as an incremental part of their bid rate and asking for multiple 
sets of bid rates so we can isolate any COVID impacts as a total part of the bid rate. 
 
Tim Barclay:  It's my opinion that with the introduction of a lower AV plan, the process 
of calculating the state index rate and the resulting plan premiums should be revisited.  
There's a certain logic behind the current process that introduces a leveraging effect on 
the premium differentials.  That logic makes perfect sense when the plans are all 
roughly the same AV because that leveraging tends to disproportionately affect member 
premiums relative to plan performance.  I don't think that leveraging concept really 
makes sense with the introduction of a lower AV plan.  I think there are ways we could 
adjust.  This would obviously be an easier conversation to have if we were all in the 
same room and we could use a whiteboard.  But I just think at a high level, leave it at 
that for now, the index rate calculation and the premium calculations need to be 
modified. 
 
Sue Birch:  Thank you for that input, Tim.  We look forward when we're all back in the 
same room and have that whiteboard time.   
 
Dave Iseminger:  I'm interested if there are any particular concerns from the Board that 
we need to, as an agency, prepare for the follow-up presentation in May.  In order to hit 
the full rate development process correctly, we would need the Board to act on this 
resolution at the next board meeting.  If at this point there are concerns or questions, 
please raise them.  If you identify them, over the next couple of days as you're reflecting 
on this meeting, you can shoot me an email so we can make sure we can adequately 
bring follow up for the public meeting about the introduction of this plan and address any 
concerns. 
 
Harry Bossi:  Would you anticipate Kaiser coming in and saying they would like you to 
consider a $750 or similar for us?  Because my concern then would be too many plans.  
I don't know how that process would evolve or not evolve. 
 
Dave Iseminger:  Important strategic question, Harry.  Thanks for reminding me to 
bring this up.  When we look at the SEBB portfolio now, there are roughly 17 medical 
plans compared to the PEBB portfolio, which I believe has roughly eight or nine plans.  
One of the big differences beyond just the sheer number of plan comparisons is, in the 
PEBB Program, I believe we have 15 counties where the only plan options for those 
residents are the Uniform Medical Plan.  In the SEBB Program, there are only three 
counties, which have choices only within the Uniform Medical Plan Portfolio.   
 
For plan year 2021, we're bringing to you the self-insured piece of basically copying and 
leveraging the experience we just went through in launching for the SEBB Portfolio.  It is 
likely we will visit this topic again with you next year about the fully insured part of the 
portfolio.  We did not want was to prematurely bring over and have conversations about 



14 

 

additional fully insured options.  The SEB Board indicated when they launched the 
number of plans they did, they wanted to evaluate and consider whether they ultimately 
may reduce some of the plans in their portfolio.  We want a full year of experience when 
it came to the full breadth of the SEBB Program and for your sister Board to evaluate 
the breadth of options in their portfolio, and maybe recalibrate, as they feel necessary, 
before we simultaneously brought conversations to you about any additional plan 
options from fully insured carriers for the PEBB portfolio.  
 
I am certain our fully insured partners are interested in visiting different parts of their 
offerings within the PEBB Program just as they are learning about the experience 
they're having in a consolidated SEBB Program.  There is likely a part two to this 
conversation for plan year 2022.  Given our experience in our own ownership of the 
Uniform Medical Plan, we felt comfortable bringing this piece to your attention and 
consideration for 2021.  
 
John Comerford:  This is my first meeting where we’ve talked about AV.  My 
assumption is that AV is the percentage of the state’s commitment to the overall cost.  
Is that correct?  So it’s 82%?  Or is it 88%? 
 
Tanya Deuel:  Yes.  In this situation, 82% actuarial value is the state will pay 
approximately 82% of the cost for covered benefits. 
 
Dave Iseminger:  That’s on average across the plan. 
  
John Comerford:  On average.  But basically, if I were looking at this from an 
employee standpoint, it's getting a better bang for their buck with the 88%, is that 
correct? 
 
Tanya Deuel:  Yes, but they're paying more in premium. 
 
John Comerford:  Yes, I understand that.   
 
Sue Birch:  I think it’s not fair to say they're getting more bang for their buck.  It 
depends what kind of utilizer there are.  If they’re a low utilizer that doesn't use their 
care benefit offerings, then I think others would say, well, no, they're being made to pay 
for something they're not using.  It gives our employees more choice.  I think there's a 
number of ways you could interpret that.   
 
It was something we've learned with the SEBB population that we needed to create this 
differentiated AV plan.  I think that is why the staff brought it forward to the PEBB side of 
the house and I appreciate that.   
 
Agenda Item:  UMP Vision Proposal 
Shawna Lang, UMP Senior Account Manager.  Slide 2 – Background.  In 2018, there 
was a procurement for a Uniform Medical Plan third party administrator, which was 
awarded to Regence.  Due to multiple implementation plans with PEBB and SEBB 
going live January 1, 2020, we decided to stay with the current vision network for one 
more year.  Regence Vision Solutions was used into 2020, and they currently continue 
using that network for UMP.  However, as part of the procurement, the plan was to 
move over to Vision Service Plan (VSP).  That move will take place January 1, 2021.   



15 

 

Dave Iseminger:  When Regence won and we negotiated their contract, their financial 
modeling included a switch of networks.  Because of the complexities of launching the 
SEBB Program, HCA asked them to maintain the status quo for the vision component 
for one more year.  That had an administrative cost because their contract negotiation 
accounted for this switch.  We have been in conversations with Regence on how to 
administer this vision benefit within the Uniform Medical Plan as an embedded benefit 
with their intended VSP provider network.  They have been quickly retiring their 
homegrown network.  We're one of the last vestiges using it via UJMP.  If we were to try 
to maintain the current network use, it would become more expensive.  We had 
intended to have the switch go live with the new contract for the PEBB Program in 2020.  
We just couldn't get there.  Regence was accommodating us to extend the status quo 
for one more year, but we have this network change that needs to go into effect.  As a 
result of that network change, there are a few relatively minor benefit changes that need 
to happen alongside of it that Shawna is about to go over. 
 
Elyette Weinstein:  What does VSP stand for?  
 
Dave Iseminger:  VSP stands for Vision Service Plan.  That's the name of the 
company.  Most members are used to hearing VSP instead of the full name. 
 
Shawna Lang:  Slide 3 – PEBB UMP Current Vision Benefit.  The current benefit, 
12/24/24, refers to exam/lens/frames or contacts.  Currently, for adults, there's a 
maximum of $150 per two-year period and it resets on an even year.  There's a contact 
spending fee that's paid at $65 every two years.  The out-of-network benefit is 60%.  
The only exception to that is UMP Plus is at 50%.   
 
The UMP benefit currently for children is 12/12/12.  They get one set of frames and 
lenses covered every year and scratch resistant coating for polycarbonate lenses, each 
covered at one per year.  Out-of-network benefit is 60%.  The only outlier is 50% for 
UMP Plus.   
 
Slide 4 – Proposed PEBB UMP Adult Vision Benefit.  This benefit is very similar at 
12/24/24.  In-network member cost share would be zero for the exam, which it is 
currently.  Contacts and fitting fees covered at $30, and frames and elective contacts at 
$150 every two years.  Out-of-network schedules are listed at the bottom of the slide.    
 
Shawna Lang:  Slide 5 – PEBB Proposed UMP Pediatric Vision Benefit.  This benefit is 
Affordable Care Act (ACA) compliant, is 12/12/12, and has covered caustic shares.  The 
exam is covered in full at 100% of allowed amount.  Frames and lenses are covered 
yearly.  
 
Slide 6 – Overview Summary.  Advantages to UMP members are lower out-of-pocket 
costs when using VSP providers, lower claims costs due to provider discounts, a 
nationwide network of over 96,000 access points that include chains like Costco, 
Walmart, and Visionworks, and a collaborative management of members with chronic 
conditions like diabetes through Eye Health Management.   
 
Possible concerns may be some members need to find a VSP choice network provider 
to receive the highest level of benefits and may need to change providers because of 
this network change. 



16 

 

Dave Iseminger:  As we launched the SEBB Program and their standalone vision 
plans, the number one question consistently asked of SEBB Program members was, 
“Where is my VSP?”  VSP is one of the broadest based vision networks possible.  It is 
unlikely a member would not be able to find a provider.  Our experience in the SEBB 
Program was that many people know who VSP is, it's a broad-based network, and 
people were hunting for VSP wherever possible.  For those who historically accessed 
and utilized VSP vision benefits, this will likely be a very acceptable, if not welcome, 
provider network.   
 
Shawna Lang:  Slide 7 – Proposed Resolution PEBB 2020-07 – UMP Vision Benefits.   
Beginning January 1, 2021, the vision benefits for all UMP plans in the PEBB Program 
will align with the coverage as presented at the April 15, 2020 Board Meeting.  
 
Harry Bossi:  With VSP, I have familiarity with it and I would agree with Dave.  I think 
members, in general, will see this as an upgrade.  So I'm in line with this plan.  But I 
want to go back if I could, and ask a question.  On the adult vision slide, I don’t see any 
mention there, and perhaps I missed it, of add-ons, like scratch resistance and 
polycarbonate.  Those would be a buy-up.  Is that correct? 
 
Shawna Lang:  I can take that away and bring back information at the next Board 
Meeting.     
 
Harry Bossi:  I want to make sure we address this upfront because with my past 
experience when we show a slide like this that says single vision lenses, zero cost, total 
exam, and glasses co-pay, the reality is people want to get the scratch resistance or a 
better carbonite material.  When they do, they are surprised and didn’t know they had to 
pay for that.  I am asking to make sure we have clarity.  Thank you. 
 
Dave Iseminger:  Thanks Harry, Shawna will bring that up as a follow up.  If there are 
modifications to the slide, we will add them in the next meeting, and the reference in the 
resolution as we present at the May 28 meeting.   
 
At a high level, if you compare Slides 3, 4, and 5, you’ll see the differences.  The three 
main benefit design differences are:  

 On Slide 4, the contact lens exam fitting fee copay is currently $65, and it 
reduces to $30.  Members would see that as an advantage.  It's a lower copay.   
 

 On Slide 4, the out-of-network schedule is currently a coinsurance model of 60%, 
unless you're in UMP Plus, which is 50%.  It moves to a copay model.  The big 
switch is from coinsurance to copay.   
 

 On Slide 5, there is no out-of-network option for the pediatric vision benefits.  
PEBB Program members are international.  Some accommodations can be 
made on a case-by-case basis with Regence and VSP for children covered who 
happen to be living internationally and under PEBB plans.  If you are within the 
United States, you need to go in-network. 

 
Shawna Lang:  Correct. 
 



17 

 

Dave Iseminger:  The plan design before you is very similar, if not almost identical, with 
one of the SEBB vision standalone plans.  The plan design here is leveraged from the 
SEBB Portfolio. 
 
Elyette Weinstein:  Dave, can you explain what you mean when you say that if you're 
going from an insurance to copay model, it's an advantage.  I'm not clear what that 
means. 
 
Dave Iseminger:  Thanks, Elyette.  To clarify, if I said it that way, what I meant was 
going from $65 to $30 for the copay of the contact lens fitting fees, it would be seen as 
an advantage.  The coinsurance, I didn't mean to imply that one is better or worse than 
the other.  There are different philosophies from members about the predictability of a 
copay or the potential for a coinsurance to be a better deal compared to a copay.  I was 
simply trying to reflect that one of the two main features is the out-of-network schedule 
is flipping from coinsurance to copayment.  The part where I think there's a clear 
advantage to members is the fitting fee for contacts, if they’re a contact wearer.  
Currently they're paying $65.  Under the new plan, if approved, they would pay $30.  It 
would be hard for a member to say that's not a new advantage to them.  If I misspoke, I 
apologize.  I'm glad you asked a clarifying question. 
 
Elyette Weinstein:  Thank you.   
 
John Comerford:  Out of curiosity, how many employees do we have internationally? 
 
Dave Iseminger:  It’s somewhere between 100 to 125.  They’re primarily with higher 
education institutions.  If I remember correctly, we have roughly 45 countries.  Basically, 
one family per country except there’s a bunch in Canada.    
 
John Comerford:  Great, thank you. 
 
Agenda Item:  HCA Legislative Report on Consolidating PEBB & SEBB Programs 
Marcia Peterson, Benefit Strategy and Design Section Manager, ERB Division.  In 
2019, the Legislature asked the Health Care Authority to prepare a report about 
consolidating the PEBB and SEBB Programs.  No action is required of the Board, but 
we want to keep you informed so you can provide input as appropriate.   
 
Slide 2 – Legislative Charge.  HCA’s charge is to study the potential cost savings and 
improved efficiency in providing insurance benefits to the employers and employees 
participating in the Public Employees and School Employees Benefits Boards Systems 
that could be gained by consolidating the systems.   
 
Slide 3 – Legislative Charge (cont.).   The consolidation options studied must maintain 
separate risk pools for Medicare eligible and non-Medicare eligible employees and 
retirees.  They must assume the consolidation date of January 1, 2022 and incorporate 
the experiences gained by the Health Care Authority during that initial implementation 
and operation of the School Employees Benefits Board Program.   
 
Slide 4 – Legislative Charge (cont.).  The study will be submitted to the committees of 
the House of Representatives and the Senate overseeing health care and the omnibus 
operating budget by November 15, 2020.     



18 

 

Slide 5 – 2019-2020 Timeline.  HCA was not asked to provide a recommendation.  We 
will simply look at the differences and identify if there are cost efficiencies or savings by 
putting the two programs together.  The timeline shows that we started last fall to 
identify and evaluate the differences between the two Programs.  Rather than trying to 
have them diverge, we have consciously tried, where we could, where it was 
appropriate, and where the Boards were amenable to it, to make them more similar than 
different.   
 
We’re now in March through June, looking at enrollment experience.  It’s too early within 
the SEBB Program, which started January 1, 2020, to have any actual utilization 
experience.  We do the demographics of who enrolled in what plans, which we didn't 
know before.  We didn't know how many dependents would be enrolled.  We didn’t 
know what that ratio would be or which plans they would select.  Now we do so it's 
easier for us to construct a model and look at what the effects of consolidation would be 
if they were one program.  We're in the process of doing that.  We will be developing a 
report, going through extensive internal reviews, and reviewing with stakeholders.     
 
Slide 6 – Milestones.  Listed are some big constraints we always think about as we do 
this kind of planning: legislative session, Collective Bargaining, Budget.  Some things 
the Legislature has authority over, the Board has authority over some, and the agency 
has authority over some.    
 
Collective Bargaining occurs in the summer and will impact plan years 2022 and 2023.  
That's always a couple of years out.  The report is due November 2020.  In 2021, a year 
from now, the Legislature will go back into session and there will be a new budget put 
forward, which begins July 1, 2021.   
 
Those are the big constraints and milestones we need to consider if things need to be 
consolidated or made the same, and were out of the authority of one group or the other.  
We would be constrained by any of these milestones.   
 
Slide 7 – Elements to Consider.  Things to consider:  plan offerings, impacts of 
Collective Bargaining, how premiums are calculated, tier structures, invoicing cycles, 
Board composition, to name a few.     
 
In the SEBB Program, the tier structure is 3:1.  The PEBB Program is 2.75:1.  What is 
the impact if those were made the same? 
 
We are very interested in your thoughts, either today or later.  If you have thoughts later 
about consolidation, concerns, or ideas, we would love to hear them.  We’d love to 
include your thoughts within the report itself.  We’ve asked the same of the SEB Board 
and other stakeholders, as well.   
 
John Comerford:  The state cap, I think it’s $983.  Is that per employee or per 
participant?  In other words, does it include dependents or does each dependent get 
$983? 
 
Dave Iseminger:  To clarify, I think you're talking about the funding rate.  Tanya, remind 
me which number it is. 
 



19 

 

Tanya Deuel:  For now, the funding rate for this current fiscal year is $939.  Is that what 
you're referring to?  
 
John Comerford:  Yes.  So I’m looking at next fiscal year.  It goes up -- 
 
Tanya Deuel:  The $976 is the next fiscal year.  That amount is paid per eligible 
employee regardless of whether they waive medical, enroll in medical as a single 
subscriber, or enroll in medical with a full family and 15 dependents.  Whether they 
enroll in just dental, life, and LTD.  That same amount is paid by each agency for each 
eligible employee 
 
John Comerford:  Is it the same for the school employees as it is for other public 
employees? 
 
Tanya Deuel:  No, the funding rate on the SEBB Program is slightly different from the 
PEBB Program.  The concept right now works the same where they pay it per eligible 
employee regardless of how many dependents they enroll. 
 
John Comerford:  Great, thank you.   
 
Public Comment 
Dr. Douglas Jeske:  I have been an eye care provider in Tumwater for the past 25 
years.  I'm thankful for the opportunity to join this meeting.  It was very enlightening in 
many different aspects.  After listening to the changes in the UMP vision care, I want to 
add a little perspective to help the Board understand what impact these changes might 
be having on members’ quality of vision care.   
 
As you are all aware, employees are required to utilize more and more digital devices to 
complete their tasks.  Most patients I now see use not one, but two or three monitors.  
Vision care can determine appropriate vision prescriptions, of course it’s critical for the 
employees’ best vision and overall health.  We all agree vision care is a key benefit for 
employees.   
 
To add a little perspective for a doctor office, the doctor's office is typically created by 
accepting a mixture of different insurances that allow us to provide a standard quality of 
care and remain financially viable.  Some reimbursements are higher and some are 
lower.  Historically, Medicaid and Medicare are on the lower end of the scale.  And 
historically, a lot of private insurances are a little bit on the middle or higher end of the 
reimbursement scale.  Having this mixture is key to allow the doctor's office to function 
properly.  You might have heard that if a hospital only examined patients with Medicare, 
most would not stay in business, as the reimbursement is too low to maintain the 
standard of care needed.  Insurance mixture is vitally important.   
 
I just wanted to make sure the Board understood that when we talk about a carve out 
vision plan, such as Vision Service Plans, Spectera, EyeMed, there's multiple different 
names, all of those to provide routine eye care benefits are not the typical insurance 
company.  They do not have to reimburse based on standard insurance guidelines.  
Their reimbursements are typically very low end on the reimbursement scale.   
 



20 

 

Historically, vision care plan reimbursements like VSP is about 63% of what Washington 
State Medicaid reimbursement has been.  In other words, VSP reimburses 37% less 
than what Washington State Medicaid reimbursement is.  They also dictate which 
frames and labs are required to be used, which limits the freedom of choice for the 
provider and the patient.  It requires a different method of submitting billing, which costs 
the offices more time to submit.  And in 25 years of being in business, the 
reimbursement from these plans has virtually not changed.  They have not and do not 
provide any COLA adjustment.   
 
As a reminder, the PEBB Program change from Uniform -- or when they changed from 
Uniform being self-administered to being administered through Regence, the 
reimbursement for routine eye care was cut by 30%.  That was about 9 or 10 years ago.  
The reimbursement went from high reimbursement to average reimbursement.  This 
was accepted and the eye providers adapted.  Since Washington State Government is 
the largest employer in Thurston County, the change that you’re proposing will have a 
dramatic effect on all eye care providers in our county.  In fact, the change will basically 
correspond to about a 50% plus decrease in reimbursement.   
 
I just want to ask you all to consider the effect that's going to have on the eye care 
providers in Thurston County, particularly.  In that, dealing with the COVID virus that we 
have right now, everything that's happening, and how it's going to impact our 
businesses.  This is going to be a very significant hit.  It will affect the quality of care that 
will be provided to all the members.   
 
Thanks for listening.  I appreciate you all for what you're doing.  If you have any 
questions, please contact me 
 
Sue Birch:  Dr. Jeske, thank you so much for your public comment.  I can assure you, 
we're keenly aware to the payer mix issues that you alluded to.  I'm sure you're very 
aware too, that there's a move affront in the United States about getting to the total cost 
of care or what true costs really are, and trying to even those out between the payers.  
We really appreciate your comments.  It’s so noted and staff have your name and 
contact information.   
 
Julie Salvi, Washington Education Association.  I wanted to make a couple of quick 
comments on the consolidation of plans, the last presentation.  I shared some of this 
with the SEB Board but wanted to do the same with the PEB Board.  So from the K-12 
perspective, establishing the SEBB was a significant upheaval for many K-12 
employees.  There was an enormous amount of work and a lot of members did see 
improvements.  But we're still working out the kinks with such a quick implementation 
timeline that was given for SEBB.  We're still working through appeals from the first 
open enrollment as an example.  So another upheaval anytime soon would not be 
welcomed by the K-12 community.   
 
We also feel there are enough significant differences between the plans that there's not 
going to be an easy consolidation and we recognize that the Boards and the Health 
Care Authority are already doing a fair amount of leveraging between the purchasing 
between the two plans and what is offered between the plans.   
 



21 

 

Where I think the burden is the greatest is on the administrative side for the agency, 
which I do recognize.  We would ask that of the options considered, could there be 
ways to create some efficiencies between the two boards, such as having more 
concurrent meetings when similar topics are being handled, which does happen a fair 
amount.  So I want to share those comments with the Board.  Thank you for your time.   
 
Sue Birch:  Julie, thank you.  We’ve so noted your comments and we have your 
contact information.   
 
 
Next Meeting 
 
May 28, 2020 
12:00 p.m. – 3:30 p.m. 
 
 
Preview of May 28, 2020 PEB Board Meeting 
Dave Iseminger, Director, Employees and Retirees Benefits Division, provided an 
overview of potential agenda topics for the May 28, 2020 Board Meeting. 
 
 
Meeting Adjourned:  3:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
  
 
 



 

 

TAB 4 



Prior Meeting Follow Up

Dave Iseminger, Director
Employees & Retirees Benefits (ERB) Division
July 23, 2020



July 15, 2020
“Supplemental Long-Term Disability 
(LTD) Benefit options” presentation

Replacement Slide 3

2



Three Types of Group Disability Coverage

3

Short-term covers an employee’s salary

•During a short-term disability

•Prevents the employee from being able to work their usual job 

•Includes events such as a pregnancy, accidental injuries, and illnesses

•Replaced by the Washington State Paid Family and Medical Leave Program –12 weeks off 

with pay

Long-term covers an employee’s salary

•During a longer-term disability

•Employee is unable to perform with reasonable continuity the duties of their job 

•Sickness, injury or pregnancy, after the benefit waiting period (usually 90 days), through 

the employee’s Maximum Benefit Period (which is specific to each claim)



 

 

TAB 5 



2021 Premium Resolutions  
Non-Medicare

Tanya Deuel
ERB Finance Manager
Financial Services Division
July 22, 2020



Follow-up on 
KPNW CDHP Premiums

2



Employee / Employer Premium Contributions  
as presented 7/22

Employee Contribution by Tier

3

Updated Proposed 2021 

Employee Contribution

(Single Subscriber)

Proposed 2021 Employer 

Contribution

(aka State Index Rate)

Updated Proposed 2021 

Composite Rate

Kaiser NW Classic $159 $581 $740

Kaiser NW CDHP $25 $581 $606

2020

Updated 

Proposed

2021

2020

Updated 

Proposed

2021

2020

Updated 

Proposed

2021

2020

Updated 

Proposed

2021

% $

Kaiser NW Classic $140 $159 $290 $328 $245 $278 $395 $447 13.6% $19

Kaiser NW CDHP $25 $25 $60 $60 $44 $44 $79 $79 0.0% $0

Tobacco Surcharge $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25

Spousal Surcharge N/A N/A $50 $50 N/A N/A $50 $50

Subscriber Subscriber & Spouse Subscriber & Child(ren)
Subscriber, Spouse/SRDP*, 

and Child(ren)

2020 to 2021 Change in 

Subscriber Rate

Subscribers may be subject to the following surcharges



Employee / Employer Premium Contributions  
as presented 7/15

Employee Contribution by Tier

4

Proposed 2021 Employee 

Contribution

(Single Subscriber)

Proposed 2021 Employer 

Contribution

(aka State Index Rate)

Proposed 2021 

Composite Rate

Kaiser NW Classic $159 $581 $740

Kaiser NW CDHP $43 $581 $624

2020
Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
% $

Kaiser NW Classic $140 $159 $290 $328 $245 $278 $395 $447 13.6% $19

Kaiser NW CDHP $25 $43 $60 $96 $44 $75 $79 $128 72.0% $18

Tobacco Surcharge $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25

Spousal Surcharge N/A N/A $50 $50 N/A N/A $50 $50

Subscriber Subscriber & Spouse Subscriber & Child(ren)
Subscriber, Spouse/SRDP*, 

and Child(ren)

2020 to 2021 Change in 

Subscriber Rate

Subscribers may be subject to the following surcharges



5

`

2020

Updated

Proposed

2021

2020

Updated

Proposed

2021

2020

Updated

Proposed

2021

2020

Updated

Proposed

2021

% $

Kaiser NW Classic $716 $746 $1,426 $1,486 $1,249 $1,301 $1,959 $2,041 4.2% $30

Kaiser NW CDHP $609 $619 $1,207 $1,226 $1,072 $1,089 $1,612 $1,638 1.6% $10

Tobacco Surcharge $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25

Spousal Surcharge N/A N/A $50 $50 N/A N/A $50 $50

Subscriber Subscriber & Spouse Subscriber & Child(ren)
Subscriber, Spouse/SRDP*, 

and Child(ren)

2020 to 2021 Change in 

Subscriber Rate

Subscribers may be subject to the following surcharges

Non-Medicare Retiree Rates by Tier 

as presented 7/22



6

`

2020
Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
% $

Kaiser NW Classic $716 $746 $1,426 $1,486 $1,249 $1,301 $1,959 $2,041 4.2% $30

Kaiser NW CDHP $609 $637 $1,207 $1,263 $1,072 $1,121 $1,612 $1,688 4.6% $28

Tobacco Surcharge $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25

Spousal Surcharge N/A N/A $50 $50 N/A N/A $50 $50

Subscriber Subscriber & Spouse Subscriber & Child(ren)
Subscriber, Spouse/SRDP*, 

and Child(ren)

2020 to 2021 Change in 

Subscriber Rate

Subscribers may be subject to the following surcharges

Non-Medicare Retiree Rates by Tier 

as presented 7/15



Impact on Other Contributions 

• The change to KP NW’s CDHP composite 
rate, does not change the state index rate

• There is no impact to other employee or 
retiree premium contributions as presented 
on July 15

7



Resolutions
Non-Medicare

8



Premium Resolution PEBB 2020-14
Non-Medicare Premium

Resolved that, the PEB Board endorses 
the Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of the 
Northwest employee and Non-Medicare 
retiree premiums as presented at the   
July 22, 2020 Board Meeting.

9



Premium Resolution PEBB 2020-15
Non-Medicare Premium

Resolved that, the PEB Board endorses the 
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of 
Washington employee and Non-Medicare 
retiree premiums.

10



Premium Resolution PEBB 2020-16
Non-Medicare Premium

Resolved that, the PEB Board endorses the 
Uniform Medical Plan employee and Non-
Medicare retiree premiums.

11



Questions?

Tanya Deuel, ERB Finance Manager

Financial Services Division

tanya.deuel@hca.wa.gov

12

mailto:tanya.deuel@hca.wa.gov


Appendix
Non-Medicare Premiums as Presented July 15, 2020

13



Employee Premiums

14



Calculating the State Index Rate
Sample Illustration

15



Determining Employee Premiums
Sample Illustration

16



Determining Employee Premiums by Tier
Sample Illustration

17

*Tiers 3 and 4 do not change when you go from one child to

more than one child



Employee / Employer Premium Contributions

18

• Consumer Directed Health Plans (CDHP) composites include Health Savings Account (HSA) deposits
• Rounded to the nearest dollar
• Composites include the state active reduction of $1.00 Per Adult Unit Per Member (PAUPM) for the 

employer group surcharge.

Proposed 2021 Employee 

Contribution

(Single Subscriber)

Proposed 2021 Employer 

Contribution

(aka State Index Rate)

Proposed 2021 

Composite Rate

Kaiser NW Classic $159 $581 $740

Kaiser NW CDHP $43 $581 $624

Kaiser WA Classic $189 $581 $770

Kaiser WA Value $112 $581 $693

Kaiser WA SoundChoice $55 $581 $636

Kaiser WA CDHP $26 $581 $607

UMP Classic $105 $581 $686

UMP Plus $72 $581 $653

UMP Select $37 $581 $618

UMP CDHP $25 $581 $606



Employee Contributions by Tier

19

• Subscriber, Spouse/State-Registered Domestic Partner*, and Child(ren) Include $10 spouse charge
• Rounded to the nearest dollar
• Composites include the state active reduction of $1.00 PAUPM for the employer group surcharge.

2020
Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
% $

Kaiser NW Classic $140 $159 $290 $328 $245 $278 $395 $447 13.6% $19

Kaiser NW CDHP $25 $43 $60 $96 $44 $75 $79 $128 72.0% $18

Kaiser WA Classic $176 $189 $362 $388 $308 $331 $494 $530 7.4% $13

Kaiser WA Value $100 $112 $210 $234 $175 $196 $285 $318 12.0% $12

Kaiser WA SoundChoice $42 $55 $94 $120 $74 $96 $126 $161 31.0% $13

Kaiser WA CDHP $27 $26 $64 $62 $47 $46 $84 $82 -3.7% -$1

UMP Classic $104 $105 $218 $220 $182 $184 $296 $299 1.0% $1

UMP Plus $69 $72 $148 $154 $121 $126 $200 $208 4.3% $3

UMP Select N/A $37 N/A $84 N/A $65 N/A $112 N/A N/A

UMP CDHP $25 $25 $60 $60 $44 $44 $79 $79 0.0% $0

Tobacco Surcharge $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25

Spousal Surcharge N/A N/A $50 $50 N/A N/A $50 $50

Subscriber Subscriber & Spouse Subscriber & Child(ren)
Subscriber, Spouse/SRDP*, 

and Child(ren)

2020 to 2021 Change in 

Subscriber Rate

Subscribers may be subject to the following surcharges



Non-Medicare Retiree Rates

20



Non-Medicare Retiree Rates by Tier

21

• Rounded to the nearest dollar

• State-Registered Domestic Partner (SRDP)

`

2020
Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
2020

Proposed

2021
% $

Kaiser NW Classic $716 $746 $1,426 $1,486 $1,249 $1,301 $1,959 $2,041 4.2% $30

Kaiser NW CDHP $609 $637 $1,207 $1,263 $1,072 $1,121 $1,612 $1,688 4.6% $28

Kaiser WA Classic $752 $775 $1,499 $1,545 $1,312 $1,353 $2,060 $2,123 3.1% $23

Kaiser WA Value $676 $699 $1,346 $1,392 $1,179 $1,219 $1,849 $1,912 3.4% $23

Kaiser WA SoundChoice $618 $641 $1,232 $1,277 $1,079 $1,118 $1,692 $1,754 3.7% $23

Kaiser WA CDHP $610 $619 $1,210 $1,228 $1,075 $1,090 $1,616 $1,641 1.5% $9

UMP Classic $680 $692 $1,354 $1,378 $1,186 $1,206 $1,860 $1,892 1.8% $12

UMP Plus $645 $659 $1,285 $1,312 $1,125 $1,149 $1,765 $1,802 2.1% $14

UMP Select N/A $623 N/A $1,241 N/A $1,087 N/A $1,705 N/A N/A

UMP CDHP $608 $619 $1,206 $1,226 $1,072 $1,089 $1,611 $1,638 1.7% $10

Tobacco Surcharge $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25

Spousal Surcharge N/A N/A $50 $50 N/A N/A $50 $50

Subscriber Subscriber & Spouse Subscriber & Child(ren)
Subscriber, Spouse/SRDP*, 

and Child(ren)

2020 to 2021 Change in 

Subscriber Rate

Subscribers may be subject to the following surcharges



 

 

TAB 6 



Medicare Retiree Options

Dave Iseminger, Director Marcia Peterson, Manager
Employees & Retirees Benefits Division Benefit Strategy & Design Section
July 22, 2020 Employees & Retirees Benefits Division



Medicare Retiree Stakeholder Group

• On April 30, Governor vetoed the part of the budget that 
directed the HCA to:
– Develop a report on benefit options for Medicare retirees; and 
– Convene a stakeholder group to provide feedback to the Office 

of the State Actuary on these options. 

• Reason for the veto
– The report was already completed;
– Additional new plan offerings are planned for 1/1/2021; and
– Proposed stakeholder group overlaps the work of the PEB 

Board.

2



PEB Board Discussion

• The Governor asked the Board to include 
this topic on its agenda, 
– Invite the Office of State Actuary to the 

discussion on this issue, and 

– Report to the Legislature and the Governor 
stakeholder preferences and any additional 
recommendations. 

• This is our purpose in presenting this today.

3



Report on Medicare Plan Options

• In 2017, UMP Classic experienced large increases in 
Medicare premiums due largely to prescription drug 
increases.  This was unsustainable. 

• HCA started looking at additional options for Medicare 
Retirees

4

Table: PEBB Medicare Retiree Plans as of August 2018



Summary Report Recommendations

• HCA should conduct a procurement for one or more 
group Medicare Advantage plus prescription drug 
(MA-PD) plans, at least one of which offers national 
PPO coverage.

• These plans would be offered in addition to options 
under the current PEBB Medicare retirees portfolio; 

• Competition between options would determine if 
any plans would be discontinued in future years.

5



Medicare Advantage Plus Prescription 
Drug Plans

• MA-PDs are private insurance plans that cover all Medicare 
benefits, including Part D drug benefits 

• The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) pays 
MA-PD insurers a per-member per-month subsidy for 
medical benefits covered by Medicare (Medicare Parts A & B, 
also called “Original Medicare”) 

• In addition, MA-PD plans receive subsidies from CMS that 
cover at least 74.5% of the cost of Part D drug benefits. 

• Drug manufacturer discounts are also available to Part D 
plans under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act 
(ACA) to help keep premiums low.

6



2018 RFI Major Findings

Advantages
• Offers flexibility in benefit design
• Customization could allow for medical and 

prescription benefit levels similar to UMP 
Classic Medicare

• Members retain access to health care and 
pharmacy providers anywhere in the country, 
and benefits are the same whether providers 
are in- or out-of-network 

• Provides a single coverage option for all 
Medicare benefits (medical and prescription), 
and many plans offer supplemental benefits 
such as alternative medicine; gym membership; 
routine hearing, vision and dental; and clinical 
and social service programs that support whole 
person health 

• Substantially reduces employer responsibility 
for benefit administration issues or unexpected 
expenses and eliminates employer risk due to 
adverse claim experience

Disadvantages
• CMS approval for changes to an MA-PD 

plan’s service area or prescription 
formulary can take 12 to 14 months 
- PEBB Medicare retirees may not take 

advantage of new plan offering(s) 

7



Current Proposal

• HCA conducted procurement for MA-PD 
and has finalized negotiations with 
UnitedHealthCare

• Two MA-PD plans were authorized by the 
Board on July 15, 2020 with premiums 
substantially lower than UMP Classic

• HCA is conducting survey of retirees to 
understand their overall priorities

8



Discussion

9



Questions?

Dave Iseminger, Director
Employees & Retirees Benefits Division

David.Iseminger@hca.wa.gov

Marcia Peterson, Manager
Benefits Strategy & Design Section

Employees & Retirees Benefits Division
Marcia.Peterson@hca.wa.gov

10

mailto:David.Iseminger@hca.wa.gov
mailto:Marcia.Peterson@hca.wa.gov


APPENDIX

11



12

Section 212(7), page 200, Health Care Authority, Medicare-eligible 

Retiree Stakeholder Group

This section directs the Health Care Authority to convene a stakeholder group 

to provide feedback to the Office of the State Actuary. While the interest in 

this topic is welcome, work has been underway for some time. The Health 

Care Authority has already completed a report on this topic and provision of 

the first new option for Medicare-eligible retiree medical coverage begins on

January 1, 2021. Further, the new workgroup overlaps the work of the Public 

Employees Benefits Board, which includes retiree representatives and can 

solicit stakeholder feedback and provide information to the Legislature. I will 

ask the Board to include this topic on its agenda, invite the Office of State 

Actuary to the discussion on this issue, and report to the Legislature and me 

on stakeholder preferences and any additional recommendations. For these 

reasons, I have vetoed Section 212(7).



 

1 

 

PEBB MEDICARE RETIREES PORTFOLIO PROJECT 
Preliminary Policy Recommendation  

I. Background 
Problem: Increasing prescription drug spending, particularly for UMP Classic Medicare, is driving up member premiums 
and compromising the affordability and sustainability of PEBB Medicare retiree benefits.  

Goal: Transition to a more sustainable and supportive health benefits portfolio for PEBB Medicare retirees. This includes 
shifting to a reliable strategy for maximizing federal resources/revenue.  

Scope: There are nearly 94,000 members (subscribers and dependents, including spouses) of PEBB Medicare retiree 
plans as of August 2018, more than half of whom are enrolled in UMP Classic Medicare.  
 

Plan Name Dependent Spouse Subscribers Total 

UMP Classic 80 15,081 38,413 53,574 

Kaiser WA (Classic and Medicare Advantage) 35 6,645 16,876 23,556 

Kaiser NW Senior Advantage (Classic) 1 701 1,779 2,481 

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan F 0 4,195 10,156 14,351 

Total 116 26,622 67,224 93,962 
 
This analysis does not address benefits available to non-Medicare-eligible PEBB retirees or their dependents. 

II. Policy Recommendation 
HCA analyzed numerous policy solutions to provide better value in PEBB Medicare coverage. Based on this work, we 
plan to recommend to the PEB Board a procurement for one or more group Medicare Advantage plus prescription 
drug (MA-PD) plans, at least one of which offers national PPO coverage.1 These plans would be offered in addition to 
options under the current PEBB Medicare retirees portfolio; competition between options will determine if any current 
plans may be discontinued in future years. 

MA-PDs are private insurance plans that cover all Medicare benefits, including Part D drug benefits. The Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) pays MA-PD insurers a per-member per-month subsidy for medical benefits 
covered by Medicare (Medicare Parts A & B, also called “Original Medicare”). In addition, MA-PD plans receive subsidies 
from CMS that cover at least 74.5% of the cost of Part D drug benefits. Drug manufacturer discounts are also available to 
Part D plans under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA) to help keep premiums low.  

 

                                                           
1 Employer group MA-PDs with national PPO coverage are also called non-differential, or passive, PPO ESAs (extended service area). 
The plans retain a geographic service area/contracted provider network, but members may receive care from any provider who 
accepts payment from Medicare. Furthermore, members’ benefits are the same whether the providers are in or out of network.  



 

2 

 

General considerations: 
• Retiree Drug Subsidy. This recommendation assumes that HCA will no longer receive the RDS for UMP Classic 

Medicare. However, under existing conditions UMP is unlikely to qualify for RDS beyond 2019. Furthermore, it is 
anticipated that the Coverage Gap Discount Program and CMS subsidies for Part D coverage (the direct subsidy 
and reinsurance subsidy) would collectively exceed RDS revenue in 2019-2021. These subsidies would not be 
paid to the General Fund—State; private Medicare plans use CMS subsidies to cover costs for providing 
Medicare services to enrollees, and any surplus is used to enhance benefits and lower premiums. 

• CMS regulations. Medicare products (including employer group MA-PD plans) are subject to CMS rules and 
regulations. Medicare Part D benefits (including those integrated into Medicare Advantage plans) must comply 
with CMS requirements for benefit structure and prescription formularies,2 and CMS rules do not allow Part D 
enrollees to have other prescription drug coverage. Medicare rules also prohibit enrollees in Medicare 
Advantage plans from enrolling in Medigap (Medicare Supplement) plans. These restrictions apply to all 
Medicare beneficiaries.   

• Premium subsidy. This recommendation assumes that PEBB Medicare retirees will continue to receive a 
Medicare subsidy3 to offset premiums. How HCA administers the subsidy is unlikely to change.  

• Low Income Subsidy (LIS). This recommendation allows members who meet financial eligibility requirements to 
receive the CMS Low Income Subsidy, which helps cover out-of-pocket expenses for Part D prescription drug 
coverage.4 

• Regulatory uncertainty. All Medicare subsidies (including Medicare Advantage subsidies, Part D subsidies and 
the RDS) are dependent on federal budget constraints and Congressional support. Proposed changes to federal 
reinsurance and treatment of Coverage Gap Discount Program (CGDP) payments could have financial impacts on 
MA-PDs.  

• Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) liability. Under this recommendation the State may see a reduction in 
its OPEB liability,5 which could support the sustainability of retiree health insurance for public employees. 

                                                           
2 CMS requirements for prescription benefit structure and formulary design do not apply to employer group plans offering creditable 
drug coverage, such as UMP Classic Medicare. 
3 In 2005 the Legislature established a prescription drug subsidy to reduce the health care insurance premiums charged to retired or 
disabled school district and educational service district employees, or retired state employees, who are eligible for parts A and B of 
Medicare.3 Under the same law, the Legislature has authority to establish a separate health care subsidy to reduce insurance 
premiums for individuals who select a Medicare supplement policy offered through HCA. The Legislature did not distinguish 
between these two subsidies in the 2018 budget. Instead, HCA must provide subsidies to all Medicare-eligible PEBB retirees. This is 
what HCA refers to as the “Explicit Subsidy,” which describes both the prescription drug subsidy for Medicare retirees enrolled in a 
PEBB medical plan that covers prescription drugs and the health care subsidy for individuals enrolled in the PEBB Medicare 
Supplement plan.   
4 The LIS, also called “Extra Help,” is estimated to be worth approximately $4,900 per year. Low-income Medicare retirees enrolled in 
employer-sponsored health plans with creditable drug coverage  do not have access to the LIS. 
5 Other post-employment benefits are state government benefits offered to eligible retirees in addition to (not including) pension 
benefits. The greatest expenditures for OPEB are for health insurance. OPEB liability refers to the expected cost of these benefits for 
current workers and retirees over the course of their lives.  



 

3 

 

III. Analysis 
In September 2018 HCA released a brief Request for Information to learn more about employer group MA-PD benefit 
plan options in Washington, including:  

• Service areas; 
• Provider networks; 
• Benefit designs; and  
• Costs.  

Phone interviews were conducted with eight of the nine vendors contacted, and major takeaways are outlined in the 
table below.  

Group Medicare Advantage + Part D (MA-PD) 
Advantages Disadvantages 

+ Offers a lower cost option than UMP Classic; leaner plan 
designs6 confer greater cost savings 

+ Customization could allow for medical and prescription 
benefit levels similar to UMP Classic Medicare7  

+ Members retain access to health care and pharmacy 
providers anywhere in the country, and benefits are the 
same whether providers are in or out of network 

+ Provides a single coverage option for all Medicare 
benefits (medical and prescription), and many plans 
offer supplemental benefits such as alternative 
medicine; gym membership; routine hearing, vision and 
dental; and clinical and social service programs8 that 
support whole person health 

+ Substantially reduces employer responsibility for benefit 
administration issues or unexpected expenses and 
eliminates employer risk due to adverse claims 
experience 

- CMS approval for changes to an MA-PD plan’s service 
area or prescription formulary can take 12 to 14 months 

- PEBB Medicare retirees may not take advantage of new 
plan offering(s) 

 

                                                           
6 e.g. greater member cost-sharing, limited/no supplemental benefits or enhacements to Original Medicare and/or the standard 
defined Part D benefit 
7 The size of the UMP Classic Medicare population provides HCA and the PEB Board with leverage to customize group MA-PD 
medical and prescription benefit design; Group MA-PD plans tend to offer enhancements to medical and prescription coverage 
compared to Original Medicare and individual Part D plans. These enhancements are made possible by subsidies that MA plans 
receive from CMS for covering Parts A, B and D of Medicare.  
8 The Chronic Care Act passed as part of the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2018 expands the definition of supplemental benefits under 
Medicare and allows MA plans greater flexibility to cover non-clinical services that will help keep beneficiaries out of the hospital 
and in their homes. The new law also broadens access to telehealth for MA enrollees. New benefits will likely be available through 
MA plans starting in 2020.  



 

4 

 

A Word on Cost 
HCA requested information on MA-PD costs in the RFI, based on vendors’ existing plan offerings (with preference given 
to employer group plans over individual plans, when available). Due to limited time and information, plans were unable 
to provide reliable estimates for member premiums; however, HCA was able to infer that employer group MA-PD 
premiums for similarly sized large employers would likely be less than UMP Classic Medicare. Rate trends appear more 
favorable for MA-PD plans (particularly for pharmacy benefits), and PEBB Medicare retirees could see premiums lower 
than current PEBB options.  

A Final Note 
HCA came to its final recommendation after consideration and analysis of various policy solutions implemented by other 
states and large employers.  One of these options was the Medicare Part D Employer Group Waiver Plan (EGWP). 
Ultimately, administrative, financial, and member disruption considerations made this option less attractive than 
procuring one or more MA-PD plans. Under a Part D EGWP, HCA would incur costs related to set-up/implementation and 
ongoing administration. In addition, a Part D EGWP replacement for UMP Classic Medicare prescription benefits would 
cause some member disruption due to necessary changes in prescription drug benefit structure and formulary design. 
While the same is true for any Part D product, including the prescription benefits in MA-PD plans, HCA intends to retain 
UMP Classic Medicare to limit potential member disruption. Finally, PEBB Medicare retirees and stakeholders have 
requested more options in the PEBB Medicare portfolio, and HCA’s recommendation is responsive to this feedback.  

 

 



 

 

TAB 7 



Diabetes Management Program (DMP)
RFI Results

Kat Cook, Benefit Strategy Analyst
Benefit Strategy and Design
Employees and Retirees Benefits Division
July 22, 2020



Diabetes Background

• Body does not regulate blood sugar

• Types of Diabetes:

– Type 1 (5%), Type 2 (90%), Gestational (5%)

• In 2019 PEBB had 26,331 Diabetics

– UMP 22,630, Kaiser 3,701

• Increases risk for additional, high-risk conditions

• 7th leading cause of death in Washington

• Health Equity Concerns

2

Sources: DOH, CDC, ADA



Diabetes Costs

• Medical Costs

– $4.9 Billion

• Lost Productivity Costs

– $1.7 Billion total

• Total

– $6.6 Billion in one year

3

Washington Statewide Costs in 2017

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

Average Medical 

Cost/year

Without Diabetes With Diabetes

Source: 2019 DOH Report: “Diabetes Data Support”

$4,608 $23,761



Diabetes Prevention Programs

• PEBB Program offered Diabetes Prevention via 
Omada starting in 2019

– 36% of PEBB Program Omada participants met or 
beat the target weight loss goal of 5% loss

– 2,945 participants

– 1,060 met the goal of 5% or greater weight loss

• SmartHealth Program

4

Sources: Omada report; ADA



Diabetes Management Offerings

• Kaiser: Diabetes One Stop

• UMP: Traditional Case Management

• Washington Wellness training topic in 2018 
and 2020

• SmartHealth education topic

• Traditional diabetes management and 
education via in person practitioners is 
covered by all plans

5



Diabetes Management

Daily Activities By Patient

Blood Glucose 

Checks
Carb Reduction

20 Minutes of 

Physical Activity
Medication

Activities by Care Team

Checking Feet 

for Neuropathy
Eye Exams

Nutrition 

Education

A1c, BP, and 

Cholesterol 

Tests

6

Source: CDC, ADA



Digital Diabetes Management Programs 
(DMPs)

What they Offer

• Blood Glucose Tracking

• Food Logging

• Coaching

• Education

• Activity Tracking

• Medication Tracking

Benefits

• Lower A1c = Lower Risk

• Instant Feedback

• Gamification and nudges

• Documentation

• Possible reversal

• Cost reduction

• Accountability without fear 
of judgment

7



RFI Summary

• Released May 1, 2020 - May 22, 2020

• Respondents: Betr Health, Cappa, Cecelia, 
LexisNexis, Livongo, Omada, One Drop, 
Pops, Solera, Vida, Virta, WellDoc

• 3 of these respondents eliminated from 
report, out of scope

8



Two Types of Self-Directed DMPs

>5 min 

use/day

In-depth 

Education

Reversal 

Possibility

Higher Cost

High 

Engagement 5 min or 

less/day

Engagement 

is Easy

Lower Cost

Low 

Engagement

9

• Betr health

• Cecelia

• Livongo

• Omada

• Vida

• Virta

• One Drop

• Pops

• WellDoc



High Engagement Products

10

• PMPM* Cost Range $65 - $200

• One-time implementation fee for some vendors (Avg. 
$100/User)

• Requires more serious time and lifestyle commitment 
from member

• Program ends after 1-2 years

*PMPM = Per Member Per Month



Low Engagement Products

11

• PMPM Cost Range $40 - $60

• More Effective for a “casual user”

• Program has no end date

• Better than High Engagement for Type 1 and 
Gestational Diabetes



Next Steps

• Information for a future RFP

• Leverage SmartHealth for additional 
diabetes education/tools

• Support and promote plans’ existing 
diabetes management programs

12



Questions?

Kat Cook, Benefit Strategy Analyst
Benefit Strategy and Design Section

Employees and Retirees Benefits Division
Kat.cook@hca.wa.gov

13

mailto:Kat.cook@hca.wa.gov


 

 

TAB 8 



2020 Overview
Medical Flexible Spending Arrangement & 

Dependent Care Assistance Program
(FSA & DCAP)

Martin Thies, Account Manager
Employees & Retirees Benefits
July 22, 2020



Overview

• Refresh the Board regarding:
oMedical Flexible Spending Arrangements (FSA)
o Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP)
o Advantages & Disadvantages

• 2020 Enrollment
o Numbers
o Savings Estimates
o Collective Bargaining Agreement Contribution

• Current Status and what’s next
2



Authority & Benefits

• Salary Reduction Plan: 
HCA is tasked with implementing and administering a salary 
reduction plan whereby public employees can select “before tax” 
benefits funded through their voluntary payroll deductions:

o Medical Flexible Spending Arrangement (FSA)

o Employees pay for eligible out-of-pocket medical expenses 

o$2,700/year for 2020, with annual IRS COLAs

o Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP)

o Employees pay for eligible dependent care expenses

o$5,000/year maximum payroll deduction (no COLAs)
3



How a Medical FSA Works
• Annually, employees elect a pre-tax amount to defer 

from their pay, up to a limit set by the Plan Sponsor

• On the first day of the Plan Year, the TOTAL annual 
deferral amount is available for use 

• The employee uses an FSA debit card, or submits 
after-purchase claims to the FSA vendor, and is 
reimbursed for those expenses

• Annually, unclaimed funds are forfeited to the plan 
sponsor

4



Grace Period & Carry Over
In 2005 & 2013 respectively, the IRS adopted FSA design 
elements to mitigate the danger of forfeiting unused FSA 
funds:

• A grace period of up to 2½ months after the end of the 
plan year to incur costs and claim FSA funds

• A carry over, whereby unspent funds (up to $500) can
be carried over and be available for the next plan year

The PEBB Program Medical FSA includes the 2½ 
month grace period*

*A plan sponsor can offer one or the other, or neither, but not both.

5



Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP)

• Employees elect an annual pre-tax amount to 
defer from their pay, up to IRS limit ($5,000)

• Expenses reimbursed only up to the amount 
contributed at any time during the plan year

• Only for expenses incurred during plan year 

• No carry over or grace period: “use it or lose it”

6



Pros and Cons
• Cons:

o Deferred earnings could be forfeited
o Reduced taxable earnings impacts Social Security calculations

• Pros: Income and FICA taxes reduced
o Assuming maximum deferrals @ a 12% tax rate:

FSA: $2,700 x 12% = $324
DCAP: $5,000 x 12% = $600

FICA savings ($7,700 x .0765) = $589
Total Employee Savings: $1,513

o Likewise, PEBB Organizations are not liable for payroll taxes 
on deferred income (7.65%)

7



FSA/DCAP Logistics

• Employees sign-up for account(s) with the 
program administrator, Navia Benefit Solutions

• Deductions are set-up by the agency
• Pay period deferrals go to the HCA
• Employees use debit card or file a claim
• Navia pays the claims and then bills HCA for the 

funds as they are used
• Forfeitures are used to offset plan costs and 

monthly administrative costs

8



2020 PEBB Enrollment: FSA

FSA: 15,443 Accounts
• Total Deferrals: $25.53 million
• Average Annual Deferral: $1,653

• Income Tax Savings (@ 12%): $3.06 million
• Employee FICA Savings: $1.95 million

9



2020 PEBB Enrollment: DCAP

DCAP:  2,818 Accounts*
• Total Deferrals: $12.09 million
• Average Deferral: $4,291
• Income Tax Savings @ 12%: $1.45 million
• Employee FICA Savings: $925,000

10

*1,556 subscribers enrolled in both Medical FSA and DCAP



Savings: 2020 Tax-Advantaged Accounts

Total Income Tax Savings: $4.5 million

Total Employee FICA Savings: $2.88 million

PEBB Agency FICA Savings: $2.88 million

Total Estimated Savings (2020): $10.27 million

11



Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA)

For the 2020 and 2021 Plan Year, the CBA includes a $250 
contribution to employee FSAs for eligible employees

• General Eligibility
o An active, represented employee
o With a base salary on 11/1, prior to the start of the plan year, of 

no more than $50,004/year
o Eligible for the employer contribution for PEBB medical benefits

o And is a subscriber in a PEBB-sponsored non-CDHP medical plan, or
o Has waived and is a dependent on someone else’s PEBB non-CDHP 

medical plan.

• Funds available through end of grace period (3/15/21)

12



Collective Bargaining Agreement (cont.)
Communications:
• September 2019: 

o Internal FAQs created to train customer service staff to assist these members

o Mailing of likely-eligible letter to 18,000 PEBB Program subscribers 

• October 2019: Article in the state and higher ed newsletter announcing the benefit

• November 2019: Navia creates OE banner on its PEBB enrollment portal about $250

• December 2019: 

o O&T sends reminder/heads up email to 4,900 eligible employees for whom we 
had email addresses; O&T also sends reminder email to all PEBB Program 
employers

o HCA posts web announcement

• January 2020: Navia mails welcome letter and debit card

• June 2020: Reminder letter (and LOE promotion) mailed on 6/26/20 

• September 2020: Newsletter article on FSA/DCAP and $250 contribution

13

https://www.hca.wa.gov/assets/pebb/pebb-employee-newsletter-1910.pdf#page=5
https://www.hca.wa.gov/pebb-represented-employees-your-250-medical-fsa-contribution-coming


Collective Bargaining Agreement (cont.)

CBA $250 FSA contribution—by the numbers:
• $250 added to employee accounts: 1,250
• Accounts opened to deposit $250: 16,902

Total CBA Accounts: 18,152

• Total CBA Deposits: $4.54 Million

• Total PEBB FSA accounts w/ CBA: 32,345

14



Collective Bargaining Agreement (cont.)
Usage to date:

• 37% of $250-only accounts have been tapped
• 9% of $250-only accounts are now at $0

15

16,902 

15,012 
13,558 

12,693 12,197 11,951 
10,698 

- 327 657 938 1,156 1,317 1,499 

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

 18,000

January February March April May June July

Blue--Accounts = $250.        Green--Accounts = $0  

CBA Utilization of $250-only Accounts, through July 1



COVID-19 & FSA/DCAP
IRS Request – March 23 
• Extend incurred expense deadline to May 31 
• Enact a 90-day period to change FSA/DCAP elections

FSA/DCAP claiming deadline extended to May 15 
• US Dept. of Labor issued an extension for FSA
• Until 60 days after the end of the National Emergency

DCAP qualifying event reminders for SOE
• Notices sent to all agency payroll administrators
• Targeted emails sent to all those with DCAP accounts

Limited Open Enrollment (LOE) Period (July 1-31)
• Can increase or decrease 2020 annual election
• Enroll in FSA and/or DCAP for remainder of plan year
• Additional access to as-yet unspent 2019 FSA and DCAP funds

16



Status: Moving Forward

• Since Plan Year 2014, our administrator is Navia
Benefit Solutions, based in Renton

• Currently conducting a Request for Information 
(RFI) to gather industry information and data
o Rates 
o How administrators engage with plan sponsor
o Administrator marketing opportunities
o Implementation strategies and timeframes

• May be followed by a Request For Proposal
17



Questions?

More Information:
http://pebb.naviabenefits.com/

Martin Thies, Ph.D., Account Manager
Employees and Retirees Benefits Division 

martin.thies@hca.wa.gov

18

http://pebb.naviabenefits.com/
mailto:martin.thies@hca.wa.gov


 

 

TAB 9 



PEBB My Account Enhancements

Jerry Britcher
Chief Information Officer
Enterprise Technology Services Division
July 22, 2020



Background

• PEBB Program primarily uses paper 
enrollment forms to support the overall 
enrollment process

• These paper forms must be hand-keyed into 
the Pay1 system (old mainframe technology)

• We will leverage experience creating the 
recently implemented SEBB My Account

2



Current PEBB Functionality

• PEBB My Account current functionality during Open 
Enrollment

– Make changes to your medical and dental coverage

– Attest to the spouse or state-registered domestic partner 
coverage premium surcharge

– Remove medical and/or dental for dependents

– Waive coverage for yourself (employees only)

3



Current PEBB Functionality

• PEBB Program current functionality year-round

– View medical and dental coverage information

– View employer-paid basic life and basic AD&D insurance 
information (employees only)

– View your long-term disability insurance information 
(employees only)

– Download your Statement of Insurance

– View your premium surcharge attestations 

– Make changes to your tobacco use premium surcharge 
attestation

4



Project Goals

• To reduce the current paper/manual process for 
PEBB Benefits Administrators, implement an online 
web interface

• Add new functionality to improve employee and 
Benefits Administrator’s experience

• Incorporate broad time windows to allow for 
adequate testing and training

5



New PEBB My Account Functionality for 
Employees

– Build in capability to provide enhanced employee 
functionality

o Initial plan elections

o Initiate common special open enrollments

– Mobile friendly

– Add/remove dependents 

– Submit dependent verification documents

6



Timeline

– 6/2020 – 12/2020: Requirements Definition, Design, 
Development, Unit Testing

– 12/2020 – 4/2021: HCA Business Testing and Agile 
modification; volunteer business partner testing

– 4/2021 – 5/2021: Training material development

– 5/2021: Begin Benefit Administrator training

– Fall 2021: Launch for PEBB Open Enrollment

7



Questions?

For more information:

https://www.hca.wa.gov/employee-retiree-
benefits/school-employees

Jerry Britcher
Chief Information Officer

Enterprise Technology Services Division 
Jerry.britcher@hca.wa.gov

8

https://www.hca.wa.gov/employee-retiree-benefits/school-employees
mailto:Jerry.britcher@hca.wa.gov

	briefing book cover - 7-22-20
	briefing book Table of Contents - 7-22-20 - Final
	TAB 1
	Agenda July 22, 2020 - PEBB - Final
	Member List - PEBB - 5-28-20
	2020 PEBB Meeting Dates WSR 19-15-020
	2021 PEBB Meeting Dates - Final - 7-16-20
	TAB 2
	Board by-laws - PEBB - 7-16-20
	TAB 3
	Minutes - April 15 2020 - PEBB - Final Draft
	TAB 4
	P - Follow-up - Dave - 7-22-20 - Final - cb
	TAB 5
	P - 2021 Premium Resolutions - Tanya - PEBB - Final - DMI - cb
	TAB 6
	P - Medicare Retire Options - PEBB - Dave & Marcia - 7-22-20 - Final - DMI - cb
	P - Appendix - Mediare Retiree Options - PEBB - Dave & Marcia - 7-22-20 - FINAL - cb
	TAB 7
	P - Diabetes RFI - PEBB -  Kat - 7-22-20 - Final - DMI - cb
	TAB 8
	P - FSA - DCAP Overview - Marty - PEBB - 7-22-20 - Final - DMI - cb
	TAB 9
	P - PEBB MyAccount  Enhancements - Jerry - 7-22-20 - Final - DMI - cb

